






 
                                                                                                                         AGENDA ITEM: WS-2 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA MEMO 

Prepared By: John Cabrales Jr, City Administrator                                                             January 16, 2023 

Plan Review and Building Inspection Services 
 
DESCRIPTION: 
 
Receive a report and hold a discussion regarding. plan review and building inspection services. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
At the May 4, 2020, meeting, the City Council approved an agreement with SAFEbuilt (attached) for 
plan review and building inspection services. However, for whatever reason SAFEbuilt was never 
contacted to implement these services. Instead, the City entered into an Agreement with EMI Services, 
LLC for plan review and building inspection services, and the city has been using EMI for these services. 
The City was contacted by EMI Services and informed that they will not be able to provide these 
services past March 2023, because he is retiring. 
 
As a result, the City is needing to determine who will be providing these vital services. SAFEbuilt was 
contacted and they met with staff and stated they are prepared to start these services for the City and 
will honor the current terms of the 2020 Agreement. More information can be found on SAFEbuilt at 
www.safebuilt.com. 
 
Staff also visited with Bureau Veritas (www.bvna.com) and with Metrocode (www.metrocode.com) as 
well and received proposals for plan review and building inspection services (attached). Staff would like 
direction from council on whether to keep the existing agreement with SAFEbuilt or negotiate a new 
agreement with another company for these services. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 
 
None, the costs are passed through to the applicant. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTIONS: 
 
None, discussion only. 
 
 

http://www.safebuilt.com/
http://www.bvna.com/
http://www.metrocode.com/


ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

1. SAFEbuilt Agreement 
2. BVNA Proposal 
3. MetroCode 









































































 
 
 

2 | P a g e  
3880 Hulen St, Suite #400, Fort Worth, Texas 76107  

Phone: (817) 335-1497 Fax (817) 335-5733 jmkillebrew@metrocode.com 
 

 
 

Proposal for the City of New Fairview  
Building Inspection and Plan Review Services 

December 1, 2022 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Metro Code is a woman-owned, 27-year-old company that provides municipalities throughout 
the state of Texas with development infrastructure, plan review, building inspections, energy, 
green, and TAS services. Metro Code is a full-time plan review and inspection consulting firm 
that provides fast, accurate review of construction plans and building inspections.  
 
As a specialist in their field, Metro Code provides plan review services that ensure construction 
projects adhere to all building codes, local amendments, and TAS requirements. Similarly, 
Metro Code’s inspection services provide evaluations of the construction project to ensure 
building, plumbing, mechanical, electrical, and energy trades are all code compliant.  Metro 
Code follows the rules and guidelines set forth by the International Code Council (ICC) when 
conducting plan reviews and inspections.  Metro Code also follows all local and State of Texas 
requirements including, but not limited to, Texas Department of Licensing and Regulation 
(TDLR) and the Texas State Plumbing Board. 
 
Metro Code consists of plans examiners and inspectors with the highest certifications in the 
industry. All plan reviews and inspections are performed by ICC certified reviewers and 
inspectors. Metro Code also has Building Code Officials and Master Code Officials on staff to 
ensure all construction projects meet the intent of the code.  Several inspectors at Metro Code 
have over 20 years of experience and knowledge working specifically in the DFW area; this 
experience would be an incredible resource for the City of New Fairview to utilize when 
contracting inspections.  
 
For more than two decades, Metro Code has been performing Third-Party Plan Review and 
Inspections for cities within the DFW metroplex. In 2021, Metro Code completed the plan review 
and inspections on over 4,000 local, single-family residences. The staff at Metro Code are 
professional, well-qualified, and highly capable individuals that work together to provide the best 
service possible. In light of this, Metro Code would make an excellent supplier to perform 
contracted plan review and inspection services for the City of New Fairview. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

3 | P a g e  
3880 Hulen St, Suite #400, Fort Worth, Texas 76107  

Phone: (817) 335-1497 Fax (817) 335-5733 jmkillebrew@metrocode.com 
 

 
BACKGROUND 

 
 
Metro Code was originally founded in the late 1990’s. Metro Code is a small, local business 
based out of the City of Fort Worth. The company currently has 35 employees and focuses 
100% of its business in the Dallas/ Fort Worth Metroplex. Metro Code has 7 combination 
inspectors on staff, 3 of whom are MCPs and CBOs. Metro Code also has 4 full-time energy 
inspectors on staff.  
 
 

List of Services Offered by Metro Code 

Residential and Commercial Plan Review 
o Digital Plan Review available 
o Commercial Plan Review completed in 5-7 business days 
o Residential Plan Review completed in 3-5 business days 
o International Code Council standards used for all plan reviews 
o Building permits and packets delivered onsite to client 
o Liaison between client and engineers/ architects 
o Courier service for plan pick up & delivery 

 
Residential and Commercial BMEP Inspections 

o Inspections provided within 24 hours 
o Night and weekend inspections available upon request 
o Highly experienced inspectors with excellent customer service 
o ICC Combination Inspectors available for residential and commercial inspections 

 
IECC Energy Plan Review and Inspections 

o 2015 IECC standards used for all plan reviews 
o Commercial ComCheck Provider 
o Utilization of Residential Performance Software  
o ERI Compliant 
o Energy Star Provider 
o HERS Ratings Provider 

 
Texas Accessibility Specialist 

o TAS plan review completed in 5-7 business days 
o Registration of TAS project with the state of Texas 
o Inspections for accessibility compliance 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

4 | P a g e  
3880 Hulen St, Suite #400, Fort Worth, Texas 76107  

Phone: (817) 335-1497 Fax (817) 335-5733 jmkillebrew@metrocode.com 
 

 
COMPANY EXPERIENCE, STAFFING, AND QUALIFICATIONS 

 
 
Johnathan Killebrew, President, MCP, CBO 
Johnathan Killebrew graduated from Utah Valley University in 2006 with a Bachelor of Science 
in Technology Management. After working as an energy and residential inspector, Johnathan 
went on to obtain his certifications as both a Master Code Professional and a Certified Building 
Official. In 2013, Johnathan was appointed to be the President of Metro Code, LLC. Over the 
years, Johnathan has been highly active in the code community by serving as a SPEER 
ambassador in the State of Texas.  He is also a HERS rater and has a true passion for energy 
conservation. 
 
Paul Smoot, MCP, CBO 
Paul has been with Metro Code for over 15 years. Paul is one of the most certified inspectors in 
the country and has both his Master Code Professional and CBO Certifications. 
 
John Kirchner, MCP, CBO 
John has been with Metro Code for 20 years. He is a Master Code Professional and Certified 
Building Official. 
 
Clint Heaslet, Inspector Manager  
Clint is the Inspector Manager at Metro Code. He is a Residential Combination Inspector with 17 
years’ experience. 

 
Justin Tolleson, Residential Combination Inspector, 10 years’ experience 
 
Gary Webster, Residential Combination Inspector, 5 years’ experience 
 
Cole Cantrell, Residential Combination Inspector, 5 years’ experience 
 
Zach McCray, Energy Inspector, 9 years’ experience 
 
Mitchell Stephens, Energy Inspector, 1 year experience 
 
Bret Hudman, Energy Inspector, 2 years’ experience 
 
Dylan Myers, Energy Inspector, 1 year experience 
 
CarieAnn Wall, TAS Inspector, 5 years’ experience 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 

5 | P a g e  
3880 Hulen St, Suite #400, Fort Worth, Texas 76107  

Phone: (817) 335-1497 Fax (817) 335-5733 jmkillebrew@metrocode.com 
 

 

Johnathan Killebrew, President, MCP, CBO 

Certification Expiration Date 
Building Code Official  expires 06/13/2025 
Residential Mechanical Inspector  expires 06/13/2025 
Mechanical Code Official  expires 06/13/2025 
Commercial Combination Inspector  expires 06/13/2025 
Certified Building Official  expires 06/13/2025 
Commercial Energy Inspector  expires 06/13/2025 
Residential Combination Inspector  expires 06/13/2025 
Commercial Plumbing Inspector  expires 06/13/2025 
Zoning Inspector  expires 06/13/2025 
Plumbing Code Official  expires 06/13/2025 
Commercial Building Inspector  expires 06/13/2025 
Green Building - Residential Examiner  expires 06/13/2025 
Residential Building Inspector  expires 06/13/2025 
Commercial Mechanical Inspector  expires 06/13/2025 
Residential Plumbing Inspector  expires 06/13/2025 
Electrical Code Official  expires 06/13/2025 
Plumbing Plans Examiner  expires 06/13/2025 
Residential Energy Inspector/Plans Examiner  expires 06/13/2025 
Residential Electrical Inspector  expires 06/13/2025 
Commercial Electrical Inspector  expires 06/13/2025 
Commercial Energy Plans Examiner  expires 06/13/2025 
Combination Plans Examiner  expires 06/13/2025 
Building Plans Examiner  expires 06/13/2025 
Electrical Plans Examiner  expires 06/13/2025 
Accessibility Inspector/Plans Examiner  expires 06/13/2025 
Master Code Professional  expires 06/13/2025 
Mechanical Plans Examiner  expires 06/13/2025 
Combination Inspector  expires 06/13/2025 
Electrical Inspector  expires 06/13/2025 
Building Inspector  expires 06/13/2025 
Mechanical Inspector  expires 06/13/2025 
Plumbing Inspector  expires 06/13/2025 
Building Code Specialist  expires 06/13/2025 
Plumbing Code Specialist  expires 06/13/2025 
Mechanical Code Specialist  expires 06/13/2025 
Electrical Code Specialist  expires 06/13/2025 
Energy Code Specialist  expires 06/13/2025 
Registered Accessibility Specialist  expires 09/13/2022 
Texas State Plumbing Inspector - I-2892 expires 01/31/2023 
 

 
 
 



 
 
 

6 | P a g e  
3880 Hulen St, Suite #400, Fort Worth, Texas 76107  

Phone: (817) 335-1497 Fax (817) 335-5733 jmkillebrew@metrocode.com 
 

Paul Smoot, MCP, CBO 
 

Certification Expiration Date 
Combination Inspector  expires 07/14/2027 
Plumbing Code Official  expires 07/14/2027 
Fire Plans Examiner  expires 07/14/2027 
Electrical Code Official  expires 07/14/2027 
Mechanical Plans Examiner  expires 07/14/2027 
Commercial Building Inspector  expires 07/14/2027 
Electrical Plans Examiner  expires 07/14/2027 
Mechanical Inspector  expires 07/14/2027 
Accessibility Inspector/Plans Examiner  expires 07/14/2027 
Electrical Inspector  expires 07/14/2027 
Fire Inspector II  expires 07/14/2027 
Building Inspector  expires 07/14/2027 
Residential Energy Inspector/Plans Examiner  expires 07/14/2027 
Residential Plumbing Inspector  expires 07/14/2027 
Certified Fire Code Official  expires 07/14/2027 
Residential Mechanical Inspector  expires 07/14/2027 
Housing Code Official  expires 07/14/2027 
Residential Electrical Inspector  expires 07/14/2027 
Commercial Electrical Inspector  expires 07/14/2027 
Plumbing Plans Examiner  expires 07/14/2027 
Mechanical Code Official  expires 07/14/2027 
Residential Building Inspector  expires 07/14/2027 
Commercial Mechanical Inspector  expires 07/14/2027 
Zoning Inspector  expires 07/14/2027 
Residential Combination Inspector  expires 07/14/2027 
Commercial Energy Inspector  expires 07/14/2027 
Building Plans Examiner  expires 07/14/2027 
Residential Fire Sprinkler Inspector/Plans Examiner  expires 07/14/2027 
Certified Building Official  expires 07/14/2027 
Fire Inspector I  expires 07/14/2027 
Commercial Energy Plans Examiner  expires 07/14/2027 
Plumbing Inspector  expires 07/14/2027 
ICC / AACE Property Maintenance and Housing Inspector  expires 07/14/2027 
Commercial Combination Inspector  expires 07/14/2027 
Commercial Plumbing Inspector  expires 07/14/2027 
Combination Plans Examiner  expires 07/14/2027 
Building Code Official  expires 07/14/2027 
Master Code Professional  expires 07/14/2027 
Building Code Specialist  expires 07/14/2027 
Plumbing Code Specialist  expires 07/14/2027 
Mechanical Code Specialist  expires 07/14/2027 
Electrical Code Specialist  expires 07/14/2027 
Fire Code Specialist  expires 07/14/2027 
Housing and Zoning Code Specialist  expires 07/14/2027 
Texas State Plumbing Inspector - I-2787  expires 01/31/2023 



 
 
 

7 | P a g e  
3880 Hulen St, Suite #400, Fort Worth, Texas 76107  

Phone: (817) 335-1497 Fax (817) 335-5733 jmkillebrew@metrocode.com 
 

John Kirchner, MCP, CBO 

Certification Expiration Date 
Residential Electrical Inspector  expires 01/29/2026 
Building Code Official  expires 01/29/2026 
Mechanical Inspector  expires 01/29/2026 
Certified Building Official  expires 01/29/2026 
Commercial Electrical Inspector  expires 01/29/2026 
Residential Mechanical Inspector  expires 01/29/2026 
Master Code Professional  expires 01/29/2026 
Commercial Energy Plans Examiner  expires 01/29/2026 
Building Plans Examiner  expires 01/29/2026 
Accessibility Inspector/Plans Examiner  expires 01/29/2026 
Plumbing Inspector  expires 01/29/2026 
Plumbing Code Official  expires 01/29/2026 
Residential Combination Inspector  expires 01/29/2026 
Commercial Energy Inspector  expires 01/29/2026 
Zoning Inspector  expires 01/29/2026 
Commercial Building Inspector  expires 01/29/2026 
Commercial Mechanical Inspector  expires 01/29/2026 
Plumbing Plans Examiner  expires 01/29/2026 
Electrical Plans Examiner  expires 01/29/2026 
Residential Building Inspector  expires 01/29/2026 
Residential Energy Inspector/Plans Examiner  expires 01/29/2026 
Residential Plumbing Inspector  expires 01/29/2026 
Building Inspector  expires 01/29/2026 
Electrical Inspector  expires 01/29/2026 
Building Code Specialist  expires 01/29/2026 
Plumbing Code Specialist  expires 01/29/2026 
Electrical Code Specialist  expires 01/29/2026 
Combination Inspector  expires 01/29/2026 
Texas State Plumbing Inspector - I-2508  expires 01/31/2023 

  

Cole Cantrell, Residential Inspector 

Certification Expiration Date 
Residential Energy Inspector/Plans Examiner  expires 06/18/2023 
Residential Electrical Inspector expires 02/22/2024 
Commercial Energy Inspector expires 08/12/2024 
Residential Plumbing Inspector expires 01/18/2025 
Hers Field Rater  
Texas State Plumbing Inspector - I-4003 Expires 08/31/2023 

 

CarieAnn Wall, TAS Inspector 

Certification Expiration Date 
Texas Registered Accessibility Specialist, #1374  expires 06/02/2023 



 
 
 

8 | P a g e  
3880 Hulen St, Suite #400, Fort Worth, Texas 76107  

Phone: (817) 335-1497 Fax (817) 335-5733 jmkillebrew@metrocode.com 
 

Justin Tolleson, Residential Combination Inspector 

Certification Expiration Date 
Residential Energy Inspector/Plans Examiner  expires 08/29/2022 
Commercial Energy Inspector  expires 08/29/2022 
Residential Building Inspector  expires 04/09/2024 
Residential Plumbing Inspector  expires 07/24/2023 
Residential Mechanical Inspector  expires 08/28/2023 
Residential Electrical Inspector expires 03/15/2024 
Residential Combination Inspector expires 03/16/2024 
Texas State Plumbing Inspector - I-3905 expires 02/28/2023 
Hers Field Rater  

 

Clint Heaslet, Residential Combination Inspector 

Certification Expiration Date 
Residential Mechanical Inspector  expires 07/14/2024 
Residential Energy Inspector/Plans Examiner  expires 07/14/2024 
Residential Electrical Inspector  expires 07/14/2024 
Residential Building Inspector  expires 07/14/2024 
Residential Plumbing Inspector  expires 07/14/2024 
Residential Combination Inspector  expires 07/14/2024 
Texas State Plumbing Inspector - I-2704 expires 01/31/2023 

 

Gary Webster, Residential Combination Inspector 

Certification Expiration Date 
Residential Building Inspector  expires 01/26/2025 
Residential Mechanical Inspector  expires 05/27/2025 
Residential Plumbing Inspector  expires 01/26/2025 
Mechanical Inspector  expires 05/29/2025 
Commercial Mechanical Inspector  expires 01/26/2025 
Texas State Plumbing Inspector - I-4028 expires 08/31/2023 

 

Zach McCray, Energy Inspector 

Certification Expiration Date 
Residential Energy Inspector/Plans Examiner  expires 08/31/2022 
Hers Field Rater  

 

Martin Caraway, Energy Inspector  

Certification Expiration Date 
Residential Energy Inspector/Plans Examiner  expires 01/07/2023 
Commercial Energy Inspector/ Plans Examiner expires 04/06/2024 
Hers Field Rater  

 



 
 
 

9 | P a g e  
3880 Hulen St, Suite #400, Fort Worth, Texas 76107  

Phone: (817) 335-1497 Fax (817) 335-5733 jmkillebrew@metrocode.com 
 

CLIENTS AND CUSTOMERS 

 

Examples of Current Customers 

Antares Homes Highland Homes Robinson Builders 
American Legend History Maker Homes Ron Carter Construction 
B Smart Builders Impression Homes Sandlin Homes 
Beazer JM Builders Scott Tucker Construction 
Bloomfield Homes John Askew Company Starlight Homes 
Braswell Homes Kenmark Homes Stone Hollow Homes 
Camillo Properties Lennar Homes Structures & Design 
Carnegie Properties Legend Homes Sullivan Construction 
Castle Hill Builders LGI Homes TGC Custom Homes 
Clarity Homes Lillian Custom Homes Toll Brothers 
Dan Thomas Homes M/I Homes Trendmaker Homes 
Design for Living Meritage Homes Trinity Custom Homes 
DR Moss Custom Homes Our Country Homes Trophy Signature Homes 
Drees Homes Palisade Custom Homes University Homes 
First Texas Homes Payton May Homes Vector Builders 
Fred Parker Custom Homes Ramsey Construction Village Builders 
Gehan Homes Rang One Holdings V’Fine Homes 
Grand Homes Ravenwood Westbriar Construction 
Hidden Creek Riverside Homebuilder WJH Investments 

 

 

Examples of Services for Current and Past Municipalities 

Municipality: Services Provided: 
City of Allen  Inspections 
City of Arlington  Plan Review and Inspections 
City of Aurora  Inspections 
City of Corinth  Plan Review, Inspections, Consulting 
City of Dallas Plan Review and Inspections 
City of Fort Worth  Plan Review and Inspections 
City of Haslet  Plan Review and Inspections 
City of Hidden Cove  Inspections 
City of Little Elm  Inspections 
City of Melissa  Inspections 
City of Salina  Inspections 
City of Samson Park  Inspections 
City of White Settlement  Inspections 
Denton County  Plan Review and Inspections 
Town of Pantego  Inspections 
Shady Shores  Inspections 

 



 
 
 

10 | P a g e  
3880 Hulen St, Suite #400, Fort Worth, Texas 76107  

Phone: (817) 335-1497 Fax (817) 335-5733 jmkillebrew@metrocode.com 
 

Examples of Commercial Projects 

Multi-Family: 
o Broadstone 5th & Summit, 500 Energy Way, Fort Worth (Alliance Residential) 
o Alliance Apartments, 3840 Cadence Ln, Fort Worth (Amtex Housing) 
o The Moderne, 2721 Wingate St, Fort Worth (HiRise Partners) 
o Alta Champions Circle, 15848 Championship Cir, Fort Worth (Wood Partners) 
o Oleander II, 1001 & 1053 W Rosedale St, Fort Worth (Lang Partners) 
o Magnolia on Stanley, 2901 Stanley Ave, Fort Worth (MPC Stanley, LLC) 
o Mistletoe Station, 1916 Mistletoe Blvd & 2116 Beckham Pl, Fort Worth (Saigebrook Development) 
o Linwood Apartments, 201 Wimberly St, Fort Worth (BRNB Construction) 

 
Medical: 

o North Tarrant Medical Village, 3800 / 3824 / 3848 N Tarrant Pkwy, Fort Worth – Shells & Finish-
Outs (Bill & Dee Builders) 

o Heritage Glen Office Park, 9413 / 9415 / 9421 / 9439 N Beach St, Fort Worth, TX – Shells & 
Finish-Outs (Castle Development) 

 
Hotels: 

o Tru by Hilton, 6200 Old Denton Rd, Fort Worth (Krisnik Management & Development) 
o Avid by IHG, 6225 Sandshell Dr, Fort Worth (Buffalo Builders) 
o Sleep Inn & Suites, 6050 Old Denton Rd, Fort Worth (Eaglewood Group) 

 
Commercial Mixed Use: 

o Banks Business Park, 4800 Boat Club Rd, Fort Worth (Landon Banks) 
o Five Points Crossing, 2488 Avondale-Haslet Rd, Fort Worth (Texas Improvements) 
o Tillman Building, 1100 S Lake St, Fort Worth (Structures & Interiors) 

 
Commercial Retail: 

o Shops at Park Vista, 4940 N Tarrant Pkwy, Fort Worth (SP Commercial Real Estate LLC) 
o Russell Feed Store, 10600 Camp Bowie Blvd, Fort Worth (Landon Banks Construction) 
o Service King – East, 7933 Ederville Rd, Fort Worth (VLK Architects) 
o Service King – West, 2929 Strawn Ln, Fort Worth (VLK Architects) 
o Jason’s Deli, 2217 Midtown Ln, Fort Worth (Sebastian Construction) 
o Golden Chick, 4341 W Risinger Rd, Fort Worth (Annapurna Foods Inc) 
o Mateo’s Store & Gas, 5601 Golden Triangle Blvd, Fort Worth (No. 10 Design Group) 

 
Self-Storage: 

o 157 Self-Storage, 3950 Hwy 157 S, Fort Worth (No. 10 Design Group) 
o Life Storage, 12460 NW Hwy 287, Fort Worth (287 Willow Springs Storage, LP) 
o Fort Worth Self-Storage, 2721 White Settlement Rd, Fort Worth (MYCO Development) 
o Chapel Creek Storage Units, 10113 First Chapel Dr, Fort Worth (Caspian Management Group) 
o TMS Self-Storage, 2200 Highway 114, Fort Worth (TMS Self-Storage) 

   
Schools: 

o Career & Technology Education Center, 1800 W Cleburne Crowley Rd, Crowley County (VLK 
Architects) 

o Primrose School, 9840 Blue Mound Rd, Fort Worth (Max Alley Construction) 
o Primrose School, 3777 Westridge Ave, Fort Worth (Max Alley Construction) 

 

 

 



 
 
 

11 | P a g e  
3880 Hulen St, Suite #400, Fort Worth, Texas 76107  

Phone: (817) 335-1497 Fax (817) 335-5733 jmkillebrew@metrocode.com 
 

REFERENCES 

 
 
City of Dallas 
 

Description of Services: 
Residential and Commercial Plan Review 
Residential and Commercial Building Inspections 
 
Project Start Date and End Date: 01/27/2021- 01/26/2023 with option to extend 
 
Client Project Manager Name, Telephone, and Email: 
James Metzgar, 214-948-4069, james.metzgar@dallascityhall.com 

 
City of Haslet 
 

Description of Services: 
Residential and Commercial Plan Review 
Residential and Commercial Building Inspections 
 
Project Start Date and End Date: 2013- Current 
 
Client Project Manager Name, Telephone, and Email: 
Mike Thetford, 817-307-0286, mtherford@haslet.org 

 
City of Fort Worth 
 

Description of Services: 
Third-Party Residential and Commercial Plan Review 
Third-Party Residential and Commercial Building Inspections 
 
Project Start Date and End Date: 01/2000- Current 
 
Client Project Manager Name, Telephone, and Email: 
Allison Gray, 817-392-8030, Allison.Gray@Fortworthtexas.gov 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 

12 | P a g e  
3880 Hulen St, Suite #400, Fort Worth, Texas 76107  

Phone: (817) 335-1497 Fax (817) 335-5733 jmkillebrew@metrocode.com 
 

METHODOLOGY AND APROACH TO PROJECT 

 
One of our core values at Metro Code is to provide a timely, accurate delivery of work. We 
promise our customers that we will provide same-day inspections, and we stand by that 
promise. At Metro Code, we also believe in providing our clients and customers with 
extraordinary customer service. In working with the City of New Fairview, we expect to provide 
that same level of service for any contracted inspections or plan review. The combination of our 
customer service, plus our promise to deliver, is what sets Metro Code up for success. 
 
Similarly, we hire and train the most qualified inspectors, who can provide our customers with 
expert advice and building code information. Our mission at Metro Code is to provide 
extraordinary service to our clients, which in turn, enables them to construct their vision, while 
ensuring the life, health, and safety of the community. We achieve this through diligent training 
and encouragement of continuing education. 
 
In terms of performing the work, as soon as we receive inspection requests from the City of New 
Fairview, we plan to assign and complete those inspections by the end of the next business 
day. As part of our company infrastructure, Metro Code has a proprietary software which allows 
for scheduling same-day inspections, assigning same-day inspections, and reporting the results 
in real time. Consequently, our software allows our customers to access inspection results as 
soon as the inspection occurs.  
 
It is our goal is to provide a positive, professional attitude in all of our business interactions, 
whether that is with a municipality, builder, or homeowner, and we will bring that same approach 
to any inspection or plan review that we do on behalf of the City of New Fairview. We believe 
that Integrity is a vital component in developing successful relationships, and we plan to 
demonstrate this by telling the truth to ourselves, our employees, and our customers. In doing 
so, we expect to perform services for the City of New Fairview in a way to that will be successful 
for both the customer and the City.         
 
 
 

PROPOSED COST SCHEDULE 
 
 
Option 1: Pricing based per service (a la carte method) 
 

• Plan Review (Residential and Commercial): $100.00 per hour  
• Inspections (Residential): $75.00 per trade per trip 
• Inspections (Commercial): $85.00 per trade per trip 

 
 
 
Option 2: Pricing based on a percentage of each project. See below for specific pricing based 
on the current fee schedule at the City of Fairview. 
 
 
 



 
 
 

13 | P a g e  
3880 Hulen St, Suite #400, Fort Worth, Texas 76107  

Phone: (817) 335-1497 Fax (817) 335-5733 jmkillebrew@metrocode.com 
 

 
 
New Construction                Metro Code’s Fee 

New Construction New Single Family Residential 
Building Permit  $700 + $0.50/sq. foot   
Plan Review  50% of the New Construction 

Permit  
35% of Building Permit 

Building Inspections  35% of Building Permit 
New Multi-Family Residential 

Building Permit  Commercial Step Rate   
Plan Review  65% of Building Permit  35% of Building Permit 
Building Inspections  35% of Building Permit 

New Commercial 
Building Permit  Commercial Step Rate   
Plan Review  65% of Building Permit  35% of Building Permit 
Building Inspections  35% of Building Permit 
In-Person Building Official 
Services 

 $150.00/ hour 

 
 
 
Other New Construction Fees        Metro Code’s Fee 
Driveway with Curb Cut  $100  70% of Fee 
Culvert Permit  $100-Residential/$200 

Commercial  
70% of Fee 

Sign Permit (Monument)  $100  70% of Fee 
Irrigation  $100 Residential/$150 

Commercial  
70% of Fee 

Fence  $80 Residential/$160 
Commercial  

70% of Fee 

Accessory Building  $150 Residential/Commercial  70% of Fee 
New Construction Shell- Mixed 
Use Building  

Commercial Step Rate  70% of Fee 

Shell Building  Commercial Step Rate  70% of Fee 
Grading Permit  $100 Residential/$300 

Commercial  
70% of Fee 

Re-Inspection Fees 
Re-Inspections after second red-
tag  

$100  70% of Fee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

14 | P a g e  
3880 Hulen St, Suite #400, Fort Worth, Texas 76107  

Phone: (817) 335-1497 Fax (817) 335-5733 jmkillebrew@metrocode.com 
 

 
 
 
 
Alterations, Repairs, Remodels, and Add-Ons     Metro Code’s Fee 

Residential 
Building Permit  $1.00 Sq. Foot  70% of Building Permit 

Commercial 
Building Permit  Commercial Step Rate  70 % of Building Permit 
Fire Code Review (if applicable)  $80  N/A 
Final Certificate of Occupancy  $100  70 % of Fee 

Mixed Use 
Finish Out Mixed Use- 
Residential  

$1.00 Sq. Foot  70 % of Building Permit 

Finish Out Mixed Use- 
Commercial  

Commercial Step Rate  70 % of Building Permit 

Other Charges 
Curb Cut- Established Driveway  $100 Residential/$200 

Commercial  
70 % of Fee 

Accessory Building  $150 Residential or 
Commercial  

70 % of Fee 

Culvert Permit  $50 Residential/$100 
Commercial  

70 % of Fee 

Deck > 30” Above Ground  $100  70 % of Fee 
Demolition- Entire Building  $100  70 % of Fee 
Demolition- Interior  $50  70 % of Fee 
Demolition- Pool  $100  70 % of Fee 
Fence  $80 Residential/$160 

Commercial  
70 % of Fee 

Foundation Repair  $150  70 % of Fee 
Gas Test  $100 Residential/$200 

Commercial  
70 % of Fee 

Retaining Wall > 48” Tall  $100  70 % of Fee 
Siding  $100  70 % of Fee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

15 | P a g e  
3880 Hulen St, Suite #400, Fort Worth, Texas 76107  

Phone: (817) 335-1497 Fax (817) 335-5733 jmkillebrew@metrocode.com 
 

 
 
 
 
Licenses, Registrations, and Trades       Metro Code’s Fee 
Electrical, Gas, Mechanical, 
Plumbing Permit 

$100 Residential/ 
Commercial 

70 % of Fee 

Demolition Permit  $100  70 % of Fee 
Carport/Canopy/Patio Cover  $100  70 % of Fee 
Construction Trailer  $100  70 % of Fee 
Commercial Flat Work (Parking 
Lot)  

$200  70 % of Fee 

Concrete Patio/Sidewalks  $100  70 % of Fee 
Residential Flat Work (Patio Side 
Walls)  

$100  70 % of Fee 

Garage Sale  Free  70 % of Fee 
Move-In Manufactured Home  $1,100 + Truck Fee plus 

direct expenses of 
professional consultants for 
review of application and 
submitted materials  

70 % of Fee 

Move In- Truck  $100 Per Truck  70 % of Fee 
Roof  $100 Residential/$200 

Commercial  
70 % of Fee 

Sales Trailer  $100  70 % of Fee 
Screening Wall  $100  70 % of Fee 
Sign- Banner  $75.00  70 % of Fee 
Sign- Permanent  $150  70 % of Fee 
Solar Panels  $70  70 % of Fee 
Water Heater  $75 Residential/$100 

Commercial  
70 % of Fee 

Window Replacement  $75  70 % of Fee 
 
 
Plan Review services (35% of the permit) will be billed at the time the plan review is performed. 
Building Inspections (35% of the permit) will be billed at the time the first inspection is 
performed.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 

16 | P a g e  
3880 Hulen St, Suite #400, Fort Worth, Texas 76107  

Phone: (817) 335-1497 Fax (817) 335-5733 jmkillebrew@metrocode.com 
 

 
SCOPE OF WORK 

 
Metro Code and its representatives are charged as the enforcement agency for the provisions of 
the State of Texas, local amendments and Building Code, Mechanical Code, Plumbing Code as 
defined by the 2015 International Building Code, Electrical Code as defined by the 2020 
International Electrical Code, as well as the International Energy Conservation code 2015 and 
locally adopted amendments. 
 
Plan review and inspections shall be conducted as required by minimum state and local 
requirements, third party organization policies, procedures, and the International Building Code.  
Plan review and inspections services are intended to replicate the services offered by the given 
jurisdiction building inspection department. 
 
Pricing is based on applicable codes and jurisdiction requirements as of the proposal date. Any 
change or amendment to these codes after this date is subject to review and appropriate price 
adjustment, as required, and shall be retroactive to change the effective date. 
 
ACCESS TO SITE 
 
Unobstructed access to the site and all work areas shall be required. Any scheduled visit which 
is cancelled after the arrival of the inspector shall be billed at the normal inspection rate. 
 
EXCLUSIONS 
 
Special inspections as specified in chapter 17 of the 2015 International Building Code are not 
included and may be required as specified in the 2015 International Building Code. 
 
All reviews and inspections exclude State, Federal, County, Health, T.E.A., Civil, Landscape 
Irrigation, Fire and Zoning regulations unless specified in this proposal. 
 
Metro Code is not responsible for any construction delays due to weather…i.e. “Acts of God”.   
 
All items not specifically listed in SCOPE OF WORK. 
 
All taxes, payments, performance bonds, and liquidated damages. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

17 | P a g e  
3880 Hulen St, Suite #400, Fort Worth, Texas 76107  

Phone: (817) 335-1497 Fax (817) 335-5733 jmkillebrew@metrocode.com 
 

 
IMPORTANT INFORMATION FOR SCHEDULING INSPECTIONS 

 
 
Records: In order to assist in plan review and inspections, Metro Code requests access to 
records in a digital format (PDF). Record transfers should be done via email if possible but can 
include alternative methods as needed. Metro Code can work with paper records as needed.  
 
Reporting: Metro Code will notify the client and email the inspection reports in conjunction with 
the provided reporting process. Updates will be sent out daily via email. Completed inspections 
will be emailed as soon as they are recorded at Metro Code. The city will be responsible for 
inputting the inspection reports into the city system.  
 
Inspection Requests: Requests will be scheduled directly from the client to Metro Code. 
Request for inspections should be made with a 24-hour notice to Metro Code via email to 
inspections@metrocode.com. The email request should include permit number, date of 
inspection request, project address, type of inspection needed, site contact and phone number.  
 
Inspections Prior to Permit: Metro Code cannot perform inspections prior to the issuance of 
the building permit; doing so will result in the cancellation of Metro Code’s third-party contract 
with the client.  Similarly, the project will be subject to sanctions and fines by the City of New 
Fairview for such work. 
 
Subcontractor Permits: - The Electrical, Mechanical (HVAC), Plumbing, Backflow, and 
Sprinkler permits must be obtained through the City of New Fairview. These permits must be in 
place before the work can commence.  
 
CFA/Civil Approval: Metro Code does not employ civil engineers and generally cannot assist 
with this work that may be required for the client’s specific project. Please consult with a 
professional engineer on a per project basis to ensure the client has taken the necessary steps 
to prevent construction delays. 
 
After-Hours and Weekend Inspections: Metro Code knows that bad things happen to good 
people! If the client needs an after-hours or weekend inspection, please call Metro Code’s office 
and speak with the Scheduling Department. Metro Code will do everything in their power to 
work with the client’s specific needs.  Fee is $150 per trade, per building being requested.  Full 
payment will need to be made to Metro Code during business hours before inspection can be 
scheduled.  
 

mailto:inspections@metrocode.com


 
                                                                                                                         AGENDA ITEM: WS-3 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA MEMO 

Prepared By: John Cabrales Jr, City Administrator                                                             January 16, 2023 

Amendments to Chapter 3 “Animal Control” 
 
DESCRIPTION: 
 
Receive a report and hold a discussion regarding amending the Chapter 3, “Animal Control” of the City 
Code of Ordinances. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
Chapter 3 of the City’s Code of Ordinances contains provisions regarding Animal Control, including the 
keeping of bees (Section 3.01.016) and the keeping of livestock (Section 3.01.014). At the January 10, 
2022, City Council meeting there was a discussion regarding the keeping of bees. The Council decided 
that a 25-foot setback from any structure for the keeping of bees was the distance needed to keep 
everyone safe. The current ordinance language does not have any distance requirements. 
 

§ 3.01.016 Keeping bees. 
It shall be unlawful for any person to knowingly keep bees in such a manner as to deny 
the reasonable use and enjoyment of adjacent property or endanger the personal 
health and welfare of the inhabitants of the city. Bees shall not be kept in subdivisions 
of the city. 
(Ordinance 2000-13-0073, sec. X(C), adopted 8/14/00) 

 
Also, at the March 7, 2022, City Council meeting there was a discussion regarding the keeping of 
livestock. The Council decided to update the current ordinance to allow one (1) cow, one (1) horse, one 
(1) donkey or one (1) mule per acre. The current ordinance only allows one head of livestock per acre. 
They also want to include smaller livestock, such as goats or sheep, and were wanting to allow two (2) 
smaller livestock  per acre. However, if animals are nursing then allow five (5) per acre to allow for the 
nursing offspring. They also wanted an exemption to the prohibition of swine for 4H or FFA show 
animal purposes, such that secondary school students in a 4-H or FFA program may keep swine for an 
approved program, limited in time to the program and are subject to minimum space and shelter 
requirements. 
 

§ 3.01.014 Keeping livestock. 
(a) Hogs. It shall be unlawful for any person to intentionally or knowingly feed or keep 
any species of swine in any lot, pen, building, stable or other enclosure in the city, any 



part of which lot, pen, building, stable or other enclosure is nearer than one hundred 
(100) feet to any neighboring habitat. Only one pig is allowed per every five acres. 
 
(b) Other animals. It shall be unlawful for any person to intentionally or knowingly feed, 
stable, pasture or keep any cow, goat, horse, mule, donkey, sheep or other livestock, 
except swine, in any lot, pen, building, stable or other enclosure in the city, any part of 
which lot, pen, building, stable or other enclosure is within two hundred (200) feet of 
any building. Only one head of livestock is allowed per acre. 
(Ordinance 2000-13-0073, sec. X(D), adopted 8/14/00) 

 
City staff was supposed to bring back an ordinance amendment with these changes for City Council 
consideration, but that was never done. Staff wants to confirm that the current council still wants to 
make these changes and that there are no other changes needed to Chapter 3. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 
 
None 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTIONS: 
 
None, discussion only. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

1. Chapter 3, “Animal Control” Ordinance 
2. Jan. 10, 2022, City Council Meeting Minutes 
3. Mar. 7, 2022, City Council Meeting Minutes 
4. Draft Ordinance 



Chapter 3

ANIMAL CONTROL

3:1





ARTICLE 3.01
GENERAL PROVISIONS

§ 3.01.001. Definitions.

The following words and phrases, for purpose of this chapter, have the following
meanings:
Animal. Unless otherwise stated includes any living creature including, but not limited
to, dogs, cats, cows, horses, birds, fish, mammals, reptiles, insects, fowl and livestock,
but specifically excluding human beings.
Animal control officer. The person or persons that are qualified and designated by the
city to represent and act for the city in the impoundment of animals, controlling of stray
animals and as otherwise required in this chapter.
[Animal shelter or city shelter.] The shelter provided for by the city, whether owned by
the city or contracted for by the city.
At large. An animal that is not confined on or off the owner's or keeper's premises
by a containment device of sufficient strength and/or height to prevent an animal from
escaping there from inside the house or other enclosure or secured on said premises by a
leash of sufficient strength to prevent the animal from escaping from said premises, and
so arranged that the animal will remain upon said premises when the leash is stretched to
full length in any direction. An animal shall not be considered "at large" when held and
controlled by some person, physically or by means of a leash or chain of proper strength
and length to control the actions of the animal or while confined within a vehicle. An
animal in the back of a pick-up truck is not an animal running at large. An animal
that answers to commands that is under the command of its owner or trainer while on
the property of the owner or other property with permission of property owner may be
unconfined if being exercised for play or work.
Auction. Any place or facility where animals are bought, sold or traded except for those
facilities otherwise defined in this chapter. This definition does not apply to individual
sales of animals by owners.
Building. Any enclosed structure intended for use or occupation as a habitation.
Cats. The word "cats" means cats of all ages, both male and female.
Dogs. The word "dogs" means dogs of all ages, both male and female.
Domestic animals. Any animals that are kept for commercial purposes, i.e., breeding,
or production of food, fur, eggs, feathers, or fertilizers, including but not limited to the
following: sheep, goats, chickens, ducks and geese or other fowl, and includes livestock.
Enter. The intrusion of the entire body.
Exotic animals. Any mammal, amphibian, reptile or fowl which is not naturally tame or
gentle and is generally not found in the wild in the continental United States and those
regulated and defined by the state department of parks and wildlife as exotic.
Fowl. Chickens, turkeys, pheasants, quail, geese, ducks, or similar tethered [feathered]
animals regardless of age, sex or breed.
Habitation. A structure that is adapted for the overnight accommodation of persons and

§ 3.01.001 ANIMAL CONTROL § 3.01.001

3:3



includes the following:

Livestock. Domesticated animals normally kept for farm purposes, including but not
limited to cattle, horses, sheep, goats and pigs.
Nuisance. Any thing or animal which is injurious to the health or morals or indecent or
offensive to the senses or an obstruction to the free use of property so as to interfere with
the comfortable enjoyment of life or property is declared a nuisance and as such shall be
abated.
Owner. Any person who has legal or equitable title to any animal, harbors or keeps any
animal in his possession, or who permits any animal to remain on or about his premises.
Pet shop. Any person, partnership or corporation, whether operated separate or in
connection with another business enterprise except a licensed kennel, that buys, sells or
boards any species of pets.
Possession. Actual care, custody, control or management of a certain animal.
Premises. The grounds and all buildings and appurtenances pertaining to the grounds,
including any adjacent premises if they are directly or indirectly under the control of the
same person.
Public place. Any place to which the public or a substantial group of the public has
access and includes but is not limited to streets, sidewalks, highways, alleyways, parks
and the common areas of schools, hospitals, apartment houses, office buildings, transport
facilities and shops.
Rabies vaccination. Properly injected with a rabies vaccine licensed for use in that
species by the United States Department of Agriculture and/or department of state health
services and administered by a veterinarian licensed to practice in the state.
Stray. To wander upon a public place or the property of another person.
Vicious animal. Any unprovoked animal, whether on public or private property, who
approaches a person or domestic animal and exhibits vicious or terrorizing behavior in
an apparent attitude of attack, whether it inflicts injury or not. Vicious animal includes,
but is not limited to, any dog with a known propensity to attack without provocation or
otherwise cause injury or endanger the safety of human beings or other domestic animals
and a dog trained, owned, or harbored for the purposes of dog fighting.
Wild animals. All animals and reptiles which commonly exist in a natural, unconfined
state and are usually not domesticated, regardless of the circumstances or duration of
captivity. Examples of wild animals include but are not limited to the following: lions,
tigers, bobcats, cougars, panthers, leopards, cheetahs, bears, javelinas, wolves, coyotes,
elephants, gila monsters, water moccasins, coral snakes, rattlesnakes, copperheads, king
cobras, any poisonous snake or reptile, pythons, boa constrictors, crocodiles and
alligators.

(Ordinance 2000-13-0073, sec. I, adopted 8/14/00)

§ 3.01.002. Penalty.

Each separately secured or occupied portion of the structure; and(1)

Each structure appurtenant to or connected with the structure.(2)

§ 3.01.001 NEW FAIRVIEW CODE § 3.01.002

3:4



(Ordinance 2000-13-0073, sec. IX, adopted 8/14/00)

§ 3.01.003. Enforcement.

(Ordinance 2000-13-0073, sec. VIII, adopted 8/14/00)

§ 3.01.004. Citations; authority of animal control officers.

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person, firm or corporation to violate the provisions of
this chapter. Any such violation shall constitute a misdemeanor, and upon
conviction thereof shall be punished by fine in accordance with the general penalty
provision found in section 1.01.009 of this code.

(b) Each and every day that a violation of this chapter continues shall constitute a
separate offense.

(a) The enforcement of this article shall be the responsibility of the chief of police and
his designated animal control officer(s).

(b) Any police officer, the animal control officer, ordinance officer, and the local health
official shall have authority to issue citations for violation of the provisions of this
chapter.

(c) It shall be unlawful for any person to interfere with any authorized officer
performing duties under this chapter.

(a) Citations; right of entry; interference with animal control officer.

(1) The animal control officer shall have the authority to issue citations for any
violation of this chapter.

(2) It shall be unlawful for any person upon being issued a citation to intentionally
or knowingly give the animal control officer other than his true name and
address.

(3) It shall be unlawful to intentionally or knowingly fail to appear in accordance
with the terms of a citation issued by the animal control officer.

(4) If the person being cited is not present, the animal control officer may send the
citation to the alleged offender by certified or registered mail, return receipt
requested, whereupon service shall be deemed complete.

(5) It shall be unlawful for any person to intentionally or knowingly interfere with
the animal control officer in the performance of his duties.

(6) The animal control officer shall have right of ingress and egress on private
property for the purpose of apprehending an animal at large.

(b) Authority to carry tranquilizer guns. When acting in the course and scope of his
employment the animal control officer shall be and is hereby authorized to carry
on his person, or in his city vehicle, loaded tranquilizer guns approved by the
director of animal control and not in violation of any provision of the Texas Penal
Code or any other applicable state law.

§ 3.01.002 ANIMAL CONTROL § 3.01.004

3:5



(Ordinance 2000-13-0073, sec. IV(B), (C), adopted 8/14/00)

§ 3.01.005. Rabies control.

(Ordinance 2000-13-0073, sec. II, adopted 8/14/00)

§ 3.01.006. Animals at large; impoundment.

(a) Vaccination of dogs and cats required. All dogs and cats within the city, four (4)
months of age or over, shall be vaccinated. Such vaccination certificate shall
reflect the name of the owner, his address, a description of the dog or cat, the date
of the vaccination, the number of the vaccination tag and the kind of vaccination
used. The veterinarian shall furnish the owner with a metal tag; on one side shall
be stamped the words "Vaccinated against Rabies" and the date of the vaccination;
this tag shall be securely attached to the collar or harness of the dog or cat at all
times.

(b) Reporting of rabies cases; confinement of suspected rabid animals. It shall be the
duty of the owner, custodian, or the veterinarian to report to the city shelter all
cases of rabies or suspected rabies of which any of the persons have knowledge.
Any animal having rabies or symptoms thereof, or suspected of having rabies, or
which has been exposed to rabies, shall be immediately released by the owner to
the city for confinement in the shelter or, immediately upon facts having come to
the attention of the owner or custodian of such animal with respect to its being
rabid or having been exposed to rabies, such dog, cat or other animal shall be
immediately and securely quarantined and kept under supervision of the city
shelter for a period of not less than ten (10) days.

(c) Confinement of animal that has bitten person.

(1) When a dog, cat or other animal has bitten, scratched or otherwise attacked a
person, that person or anyone having knowledge of such incident shall
immediately notify the city and such dog, cat or other animal shall be confined
in the shelter or at a veterinary hospital for a period of ten (10) days at the
expense of the owner, and such dog, cat or other animal shall, during such
period of confinement, be subject to inspection by city personnel, or a licensed
veterinarian. If, after the ten (10) day period, the owner fails to pick up the
animal, the owner is notified and granted five (5) additional days to pick up
the animal at a charge in accordance with the current fee schedule adopted by
the city council. After this time limit, the city shelter can then adopt or dispose
of the animal.

(2) If the animal in question has a valid and current vaccination, the owner shall
have authority to secure the animal on his own property, provided that the
animal be inspected by a veterinarian at the end of the quarantine period.

(d) Quarantine fee. The owner of any dog or cat held in quarantine for observation
purposes shall be charged a fee in accordance with the current fee schedule
adopted by the city council. This fee is in addition to any impoundment fee.

(a) Dogs running at large. Any person owning, possessing, or keeping a dog or dogs
within the city, vaccinated or unvaccinated, shall confine such dog or dogs within

§ 3.01.004 NEW FAIRVIEW CODE § 3.01.006

3:6



an adequate fence or enclosure, or within a house, garage or other building, or
shall keep such dog or dogs confined by a leash or chain affixed to the dog's collar
and attached to some stationary object adequate to prevent the dog or dogs from
running at large.

(b) Impounding of dogs. The animal control officer shall take into custody any dog
found at large in the city, and shall impound the dog in the city shelter. Such
impounded dog shall be held for a period of three (3) days, and at the end of the
time, if the dog has not been claimed and the proper fee paid as prescribed herein,
the dog shall be adopted or disposed of.

(c) Authority to kill, impound or destroy animals. The animal control officer shall
have authority to do the following:

(1) Kill an animal which poses an imminent danger to a person or property and a
real or apparent necessity exists for the destruction of the animal.

(2) Impound an animal that is diseased and endangers the health and welfare of
another animal or person.

(3) Destroy an impounded animal if the animal control officer determines that
recovery of the animal is doubtful due to injury or disease.

(d) Impoundment fees.

(1) The owner of an impounded animal will pay fees in accordance with the
current fee schedule adopted by the city council in order to redeem such
animal.

(2) A handling charge in accordance with the current fee schedule adopted by the
city council will be added to the above amount before redemption of the
animal.

(3) Any person claiming an animal that has not been vaccinated for rabies within
the last year shall pay an impoundment fee in accordance with the current fee
schedule adopted by the city council. Before releasing the animal, the owner
shall sign a promise in writing that the animal will be vaccinated for rabies
immediately upon release from the shelter. The animal control officer shall
keep such a statement in a safe place and, upon receiving proof of the
vaccination within five (5) days, shall refund the difference above the normal
amount owed. Should such a statement be signed and the animal is impounded
again, and the animal not having been vaccinated as promised, then the
impoundment fee shall be in accordance with the current fee schedule adopted
by the city council. Upon each subsequent impoundment of such animals, [if]
the same not have been vaccinated, an additional fee shall be assessed in
accordance with the current fee schedule adopted by the city council.

(e) Euthanasia request. If the lawful owner of an animal requests euthanasia due to
probable reasons, the owner must first sign the required forms. The city shelter
will pay for euthanasia.

(f) Adoption.

§ 3.01.006 ANIMAL CONTROL § 3.01.006

3:7



(Ordinance 2000-13-0073, sec. III, adopted 8/14/00)

§ 3.01.007. Nuisances.

(Ordinance 2000-13-0073, sec. IV(A), adopted 8/14/00)

§ 3.01.008. Confinement of stray animal by individual.

If a stray animal is found upon the premises of another, the occupant of the premises
may confine the animal only for so long as reasonably necessary to notify the shelter and
have the animal impounded. In attempting to confine the animal, the occupant shall not
use any force that is intended or known by the occupant to cause, or in the manner of its
use is capable of causing, death or injury to the animal.

(Ordinance 2000-13-0073, sec. V(A), adopted 8/14/00)

(1) A person who desires to adopt an animal from the shelter shall:

(A) Pay an adoption fee in accordance with the current fee schedule adopted
by the city council;

(B) Pay any license fee if required;

(C) Have the animal vaccinated for rabies within five (5) days after adoption;
and

(D) Have the animal spayed or neutered within fourteen (14) days after
adoption, providing the animal is of the proper age for such procedure.

(2) The city shelter shall make the final determination whether a dog or cat is
healthy enough for adoption. However, such a decision by the animal control
officer to permit adoption of a particular dog or cat shall not constitute a
warranty, expressed or implied, of the health or age of the animal.

(a) Noisy animals. No person shall willfully or knowingly keep or harbor on his
premises or elsewhere any animal or fowl of any kind that makes or creates an
unreasonable disturbance of the neighbors or the occupants of adjacent premises or
persons living in the vicinity thereof or persist [permit] such animal to make or
create disturbing noises by howling, barking, crowing, bawling or otherwise. A
person shall be deemed to have willfully and knowingly violated the terms of this
section if such person shall have been notified by the city shelter or any police
officer of such disturbance and shall have failed or refused to correct such
disturbance and prevent its recurrence.

(b) Unsanitary of offensive conditions. The harboring of any animal in such a manner
as to endanger the public health by the accumulation of animal wastes which
create foul and offensive odors or create a breeding place for flies or mosquitoes.

(c) Trespasses by animal. It shall be unlawful for any person to maintain any animal
in any area which constitutes a nuisance by reason of repeated trespasses on public
or private property.

§ 3.01.006 NEW FAIRVIEW CODE § 3.01.009

3:8



§ 3.01.009. Abandonment of animal.

It shall be unlawful for any person to intentionally or knowingly abandon any animal
within the corporate limits of the city.

(Ordinance 2000-13-0073, sec. V(B), adopted 8/14/00)

§ 3.01.010. Cruelty.

(Ordinance 2000-13-0073, sec. VI, adopted 8/14/00)

§ 3.01.011. Livestock prohibited in certain places; riding horses on street.

It shall be unlawful for any person to ride or allow any type of livestock upon any public
school grounds, college grounds, public park property or municipal grounds within the
city except those designated as bridle paths or other designated riding exhibiting areas
for animals. On streets, horses shall be ridden as close as possible to the curb and in no
event shall horses be allowed on highways. It shall be unlawful for any person to ride or
allow any type of livestock upon the property of another within the city except with the
express consent of the owner or person in charge of such property obtained prior therein.

(a) Confinement of animal in motor vehicle or trailer. It shall be unlawful for any
person to intentionally or knowingly confine or allow to be confined any animal in
a motor vehicle or trailer under such conditions or for such a period of time as may
endanger the health or well-being of the animal due to heat, lack of food or water
or any other circumstance which causes suffering, disability or death of the
animal.

(b) Inspection of premises where animals are kept. Premises where livestock, fowl or
pets are kept or maintained shall be subject to inspection, upon receiving a
complaint, by the city shelter at any reasonable hour of the day while in the
presence of the owner.

(c) Cruelty to animals. No person shall overdrive, overload, drive when overloaded,
overwork, torture, cruelly beat, mutilate, or needlessly kill, or carry or transport in
any vehicle or other conveyance in a cruel and inhumane manner, any animal, or
cause any of these acts to be done.

(d) Poisoning animals. No person shall in any place accessible to birds, dogs, cats or
other animals, with the intent to kill or harm such animals, place any substance
which has in any manner been treated with any poisonous substance.

(e) Fighting. No person shall maintain any place where fowls or any animals are
suffered to fight upon exhibition, or for sport upon wager.

(f) Tying dogs. It shall be unlawful to tie or tether a dog to a stationary object for a
period of time or in a location so as to create an unhealthy situation for the animal
or a potentially dangerous situation for a pedestrian as determined by the city
shelter.

(g) Food and shelter. No person shall fail to provide any animal in his charge or
custody with sustenance, drink and protection from these elements, or cause any of
these acts to be done.

§ 3.01.009 ANIMAL CONTROL § 3.01.011

3:9



(Ordinance 2000-13-0073, sec. X(A), adopted 8/14/00)

§ 3.01.012. Breeding livestock.

It shall be unlawful for any person to intentionally or knowingly keep for breeding
purposes or employ for breeding purposes any jack, bull, stallion, ram, he-goat or other
livestock within 2 acres or less.

(Ordinance 2000-13-0073, sec. X(B), adopted 8/14/00)

§ 3.01.013. Herding animals in public place.

It shall be unlawful for any person to intentionally or knowingly move herds of animals
along or upon any public place within the corporate city limits without the permission
of the city council, except that this section shall not be applicable to any officer, agent
or employee of the federal, state or local government if such herding is done in the
performance of his official duties.

(Ordinance 2000-13-0073, sec. X(C), adopted 8/14/00)

§ 3.01.014. Keeping livestock.

(Ordinance 2000-13-0073, sec. X(D), adopted 8/14/00)

§ 3.01.015. Keeping fowl.

It shall be unlawful for any person to intentionally or knowingly keep any chicken,
turkey, guinea, goose, duck, quail, pheasant or other game fowl in any fenced yard or
enclosure, any part of which is within one hundred (100) feet of any neighboring habitat
in the city.

(Ordinance 2000-13-0073, sec. X(G), adopted 8/14/00)

§ 3.01.016. Keeping bees.

It shall be unlawful for any person to knowingly keep bees in such a manner as to deny
the reasonable use and enjoyment of adjacent property or endanger the personal health
and welfare of the inhabitants of the city. Bees shall not be kept in subdivisions of the
city.

(Ordinance 2000-13-0073, sec. X(H), adopted 8/14/00)

(a) Hogs. It shall be unlawful for any person to intentionally or knowingly feed or
keep any species of swine in any lot, pen, building, stable or other enclosure in the
city, any part of which lot, pen, building, stable or other enclosure is nearer than
one hundred (100) feet to any neighboring habitat. Only one pig is allowed per
every five acres.

(b) Other animals. It shall be unlawful for any person to intentionally or knowingly
feed, stable, pasture or keep any cow, goat, horse, mule, donkey, sheep or other
livestock, except swine, in any lot, pen, building, stable or other enclosure in the
city, any part of which lot, pen, building, stable or other enclosure is within two
hundred (200) feet of any building. Only one head of livestock is allowed per acre.

§ 3.01.011 NEW FAIRVIEW CODE § 3.01.017

3:10



§ 3.01.017. Killing or injuring birds.

It shall be unlawful for any person to intentionally kill, injure or administer poison to
any bird, excluding fowl, whatsoever within a subdivision of the city without express
permission of the city council.

(Ordinance 2000-13-0073, sec. X(E), adopted 8/14/00)

§ 3.01.018. Killing, injuring or capturing animals on public property.

Except as may be otherwise provided in this chapter, it shall be unlawful to intentionally
or knowingly interfere with, injure, capture or kill any animal within any public park,
driveway, street or other public property of the city except by permission of the city
council; provided that this section shall not apply to harmful rodents, reptiles or insects.

(Ordinance 2000-13-0073, sec. X(F), adopted 8/14/00)

§ 3.01.019. Disposal of dead animals.

It shall be unlawful for any person to place, put or leave a dead animal upon a public
place, street, alley, right-of-way or public way or in any solid waste container or upon
the property of another person without the other person's consent.

(Ordinance 2000-13-0073, sec. X(I), adopted 8/14/00)

§ 3.01.017 ANIMAL CONTROL § 3.01.019

3:11





ARTICLE 3.02
DANGEROUS DOGS

§ 3.02.001. Definition.

As used in this chapter, "dangerous dog" means a dog that:

(Ordinance 2000-13-0073, sec. VII(A), adopted 8/14/00)

§ 3.02.002. Dangerous dogs.

Dangerous dogs, as defined in V.T.C.A., Health and Safety Code, section 822.041, shall
be regulated in accordance with the provisions of V.T.C.A., Health and Safety Code,
chapter 822, subchapter D, section 822.041 et seq.

(Ordinance adopting Code)

§ 3.02.003. Determination that dog is dangerous.

(Ordinance 2000-13-0073, sec. VII(B), adopted 8/14/00)

§ 3.02.004. Requirements for owner.

(1) Makes an unprovoked attack on a person that causes bodily injury and occurs in a
place other than an enclosure in which the dog was being kept and that was
reasonably certain to prevent the dog from leaving the enclosure on its own; or

(2) Commits unprovoked acts in a place other than an enclosure in which the dog was
being kept and that was reasonably certain to prevent the dog from leaving the
enclosure on its own and those acts cause bodily injury to that person or domestic
animal.

(a) Investigation and determination. If a person reports an unprovoked attack as
described in section 3.02.001, the chief of police or his or her designee may
investigate the incident. If, after receiving the sworn statements of any witnesses,
the chief of police or his or her designee determines that the dog is a dangerous
dog, he/she shall notify the owner of that fact.

(b) Appeals. An owner, not later than the 30th day after the date the owner is notified
that his/her dog is a dangerous dog, may appeal the determination of the chief of
police or his or her designee to court of competent jurisdiction. An owner may
appeal the decision of else [sic] municipal court in the same manner as for other
civil cases.

(a) Not later than the 30th day after a person learns that he/she is the owner of a
dangerous dog, he/she shall:

(1) Register the dangerous dog with the chief of police or his or her designee;

(2) Restrain the dangerous dog at all times on a leash in the immediate control of
a person or in a secure enclosure; and

(3) Obtain liability insurance coverage or show financial responsibility in an

§ 3.02.001 ANIMAL CONTROL § 3.02.004

3:13



(Ordinance 2000-13-0073, sec. VII(C), adopted 8/14/00)

§ 3.02.005. Registration.

amount of at least one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000.00) to cover
damages resulting from an attack by the dangerous dog causing bodily injury
to a person.

(b) For purposes of this article, a person learns that he/she is the owner of a dangerous
dog when:

(1) The owner knows of an attack described in section 3.02.001; or

(2) The owner is informed by the chief of police or his or her designee that the
dog is a dangerous dog.

(a) The chief of police or his or her designee shall formally register a dangerous dog if
the owner [submits the following]:

(1) The names, address and telephone number of persons owning, keeping or
harboring a dangerous animal;

(2) Name and general description of each dangerous animal, which general
description shall include name, sex, weight, color, breed, height and length
along with any other discernible features;

(3) Presents proof of:

(A) Liability insurance or financial responsibility as required by section
3.02.004(a)(3);

(B) Current rabies vaccination of the dangerous dog; and

(C) The secure enclosure in which the dangerous dog will be kept; and

(4) Pays an annual registration fee in accordance with the current fee schedule
adopted by the city council.

(b) The chief of police or his or her designee shall provide to the owner registering a
dangerous dog a registration tag. The owner must place the tag on the dog's collar.

(c) If an owner of a registered dangerous dog sells or moves the dog to a new address
within the city, he/she, not later than the 14th day after the date of sale or move,
shall notify the chief of police or his or her designee. On presentation by the current
owner of the dangerous dog's prior registration tag and payment of a fee in
accordance with the current fee schedule adopted by the city council, the chief of
police or his or her designee shall issue a new registration tag to be placed on the
dog's collar.

(d) Every owner of a registered dangerous dog shall notify the chief of police or his or
her designee by whom the dog was registered of any attacks the dangerous dog
makes on people.

(e) The animal control officer shall impound any such animal found within the

§ 3.02.004 NEW FAIRVIEW CODE § 3.02.005

3:14



(Ordinance 2000-13-0073, sec. VII(D), adopted 8/14/00)

§ 3.02.006. Attacks by dangerous dog.

(Ordinance 2000-13-0073, sec. VII(E), adopted 8/14/00)

§ 3.02.007. Defenses.

(Ordinance 2000-13-0073, sec. VII(F), adopted 8/14/00)

corporate city limits after the time for appeal has lapsed, or after twenty-four (24)
hours from the rendering of an affirming order of the city council.

(a) A person commits an offense if his/her dangerous dog makes an unprovoked attack
on another person outside the dog's enclosure and causes bodily injury to the other
person. Should the attack cause serious bodily injury or death, the person may be
subject to other criminal prosecution under the laws of the state in a court of
competent jurisdiction.

(b) If a person is found guilty of an offense under this article, the court may order that
the dangerous dog be destroyed.

(c) In addition to criminal prosecution, a person who commits an offense under this
section is liable for a civil penalty not to exceed ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00).
The city attorney may file suit in a court of competent jurisdiction to collect the
penalty. The city shall retain penalties collected under this subsection.

(a) It is a defense to prosecution under this article that the person is a veterinarian, a
peace officer, a person employed by a recognized animal shelter, or a person
employed by the state or a political subdivision of the state to deal with stray
animals and has temporary ownership, custody, or control of the dog in connection
with and while performing the duties of that position.

(b) It is a defense to prosecution under this article that the person is an employee of the
institutional division of the state department of criminal justice or a law
enforcement agency and trains or uses dogs for law enforcement or corrections
purposes and such person has temporary ownership, custody, or control of the dog
in connection with and while performing the duties of that position.

(c) It is a defense to prosecution under this article that the person is a dog trainer or an
employee of a guard dog company under the Private Security Act, V.T.C.A.,
Occupations Code, chapter 1702, and while performing the duties of that position.

§ 3.02.005 ANIMAL CONTROL § 3.02.007

3:15



























 

ORDINANCE NO.  
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 3, ANIMAL CONTROL, ARTICLE 
3.01, GENERAL PROVISIONS, SECTIONS 3.01.000, 3.01.014 AND 3.01.016, BY 
PERMITTING CERTAIN BEEKEEPING ACTIVITIES WITHIN CITY LIMITS; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A PENALTY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE  

 
WHEREAS, the City of New Fairview permits the keeping of livestock, excepting swine, but otherwise 
limits the number of livestock to one animal per acre; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of New Fairview’s existing ordinances do not make allowances for animal 
husbandry and associated youth scholarship programs, which are also part of the City’s cultural heritage 
and way of life; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of New Fairview recognizes that keeping livestock is part of the cultural heritage 
of City of New Fairview and that providing appropriate regulation protects the quality of life for all 
residents; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of New Fairview’s current ordinances prohibit beekeeping; and 
 
WHEREAS, beekeeping can be a valuable avocation, not only for the participant, but for the surrounding 
environment; and 
 
WHEREAS, citizens have expressed a desire to permit safe beekeeping within the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council desires to establish a program allowing for safe beekeeping within the City of 
New Fairview. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF NEW FAIRVIEW, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section One. Amendment to Municipal Code of Ordinances, Chapter 3, Animal Control, Article 
3.01 General Provisions, The City of New Fairview's Code of Municipal Ordinances, Chapter 3, Animal 
Control, Article 3,  General Provisions, is hereby amended as follows, with deletions denoted by 
strikethrough and with additions denoted by underlining: 
 
§ 3.01.001 Definitions. 
The following words and phrases, for purpose of this chapter, have the following meanings: 
 
Animal.  
Unless otherwise stated includes any living creature including, but not limited to, dogs, cats, cows, horses, 
birds, fish, mammals, reptiles, insects, fowl and livestock, but specifically excluding human beings. 
 
Animal control officer.  
The person or persons that are qualified and designated by the city to represent and act for the city in the 
impoundment of animals, controlling of stray animals and as otherwise required in this chapter. 
 
[Animal shelter or city shelter.]  
The shelter provided for by the city, whether owned by the city or contracted for by the city. 
 
At large.  
An animal that is not confined on or off the owner's or keeper's premises by a containment device of 
sufficient strength and/or height to prevent an animal from escaping there from inside the house or other 
enclosure or secured on said premises by a leash of sufficient strength to prevent the animal from escaping 
from said premises, and so arranged that the animal will remain upon said premises when the leash is 
stretched to full length in any direction. An animal shall not be considered "at large" when held and 
controlled by some person, physically or by means of a leash or chain of proper strength and length to 
control the actions of the animal or while confined within a vehicle. An animal in the back of a pick-up 
truck is not an animal running at large. An animal that answers to commands that is under the command 
of its owner or trainer while on the property of the owner or other property with permission of property 



 

owner may be unconfined if being exercised for play or work. 
 
Auction.  
Any place or facility where animals are bought, sold or traded except for those facilities otherwise defined 
in this chapter. This definition does not apply to individual sales of animals by owners. 
 
Apiary means a place where a bee colony is kept. 
 
Building.  
Any enclosed structure intended for use or occupation as a habitation. 
 
Bee means any stage of the common domestic honey bee, Apis mellifera species. 
 
Cats.  
The word "cats" means cats of all ages, both male and female. 
 
Colony means a hive and related equipment and appurtenances including bees, comb, honey, pollen, 
and brood. 
 
Dogs.  
The word "dogs" means dogs of all ages, both male and female. 
 
Domestic animals.  
Any animals that are kept for commercial purposes, i.e., breeding, or production of food, fur, eggs, 
feathers, or fertilizers, including but not limited to the following: sheep, goats, chickens, ducks and geese 
or other fowl, and includes livestock. 
 
Enter.  
The intrusion of the entire body. 
 
Exotic animals.  
Any mammal, amphibian, reptile or fowl which is not naturally tame or gentle and is generally not found 
in the wild in the continental United States and those regulated and defined by the state department of 
parks and wildlife as exotic. 
 
Flyaway barrier means a solid wall, fence, dense vegetation, or combination of these materials at least 
six feet high that extends at least 10 feet beyond the hives on each end of a bee colony. 
 
Fowl.  
Chickens, turkeys, pheasants, quail, geese, ducks, or similar tethered [feathered] animals regardless of 
age, sex or breed. 
 
Habitation.  
A structure that is adapted for the overnight accommodation of persons and includes the following: 
(1) Each separately secured or occupied portion of the structure; and 
(2) Each structure appurtenant to or connected with the structure. 
 
Hive means a structure intended to house a bee colony. 
 
Livestock.  
Domesticated animals normally kept for farm purposes, including but not limited to cattle, horses, sheep, 
goats and pigs. 
 
Nuisance.  
Any thing or animal which is injurious to the health or morals or indecent or offensive to the senses or an 
obstruction to the free use of property so as to interfere with the comfortable enjoyment of life or property 
is declared a nuisance and as such shall be abated. 
 
Owner.  
Any person who has legal or equitable title to any animal, harbors or keeps any animal in his possession, 
or who permits any animal to remain on or about his premises. 
 



 

Pet shop.  
Any person, partnership or corporation, whether operated separate or in connection with another business 
enterprise except a licensed kennel, that buys, sells or boards any species of pets. 
 
Possession.  
Actual care, custody, control or management of a certain animal. 
 
Premises.  
The grounds and all buildings and appurtenances pertaining to the grounds, including any adjacent 
premises if they are directly or indirectly under the control of the same person. 
 
Public place.  
Any place to which the public or a substantial group of the public has access and includes but is not limited 
to streets, sidewalks, highways, alleyways, parks and the common areas of schools, hospitals, apartment 
houses, office buildings, transport facilities and shops. 
 
Rabies vaccination.  
Properly injected with a rabies vaccine licensed for use in that species by the United States Department of 
Agriculture and/or department of state health services and administered by a veterinarian licensed to 
practice in the state. 
 
Running at large means not completely confined within a building, wall or fence of sufficient strength 
or construction to restrain the animal, or when such animal is neither on a leash nor held in the hands of 
the owner or keeper or under direct supervision of the owner when not within the limits of the owner's 
private property. An animal confined within an automobile or other vehicle of its owner shall not be 
deemed running at large. 
 
Stray.  
To wander upon a public place or the property of another person. 
 
Tract means a contiguous parcel of land under common ownership. 
 
Vicious animal.  
Any unprovoked animal, whether on public or private property, who approaches a person or domestic 
animal and exhibits vicious or terrorizing behavior in an apparent attitude of attack, whether it inflicts 
injury or not. Vicious animal includes, but is not limited to, any dog with a known propensity to attack 
without provocation or otherwise cause injury or endanger the safety of human beings or other domestic 
animals and a dog trained, owned, or harbored for the purposes of dog fighting. 
 
Wild animals.  
All animals and reptiles which commonly exist in a natural, unconfined state and are usually not 
domesticated, regardless of the circumstances or duration of captivity. Examples of wild animals include 
but are not limited to the following: lions, tigers, bobcats, cougars, panthers, leopards, cheetahs, bears, 
javelinas, wolves, coyotes, elephants, gila monsters, water moccasins, coral snakes, rattlesnakes, 
copperheads, king cobras, any poisonous snake or reptile, pythons, boa constrictors, crocodiles and 
alligators. 
 
**** 
§ 3.01.014 Keeping livestock. 
 
No person shall maintain livestock within the city, unless the following provisions are met: 
 
(a) Hogs. It shall be unlawful for any person to intentionally or knowingly feed or keep any species of 
swine in any lot, pen, building, stable or other enclosure in the city, any part of which lot, pen, building, 
stable or other enclosure is nearer than one hundred (100) feet to any neighboring habitat. Only one pig is 
allowed per every five acres., except as provided for in Subsection 3.01.014 (d). 
 
(b) Horses, cattle, donkeys, mules Other animals. It shall be unlawful for any person to intentionally or 
knowingly feed, stable, pasture or keep any cow, goat, horse, mule, or donkey, sheep or other livestock, 
except swine, in any lot, pen, building, stable or other enclosure in the city, any part of which lot, pen, 
building, stable or other enclosure is within two hundred (200) feet of any building residence. Up to one 
each cow, horse, donkey, and mule Only one are allowed per acre or a maximum of four such livestock 



 

total.  
 
(c) Sheep and goats. It shall be unlawful for any person to intentionally or knowingly feed, stable, pasture 
or keep any sheep or goats in any lot, pen, building, stable or other enclosure in the city, any part of which 
lot, pen, building, stable or other enclosure is within two hundred (200) feet of any residence. Up to three 
each sheep and or goats are allowed per acre. 
 
(d) Exceptions.  
 

(1) Pre-weaned animals will not be counted in calculating the maximum number of animals in 
Subsections § 3.01.014 (b) and (c). 

(2) Secondary school students in a 4-H or FFA program may keep swine for an approved program, 
limited in time to the program and which are subject to minimum space and shelter requirements, 
such that the lot, pen, building, stable or other enclosure may not be within two hundred (200) feet 
of any residence and the property is at least one acre. 

 
*** 
 
Section 3.01.016  Keeping Bees 
 
(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to knowingly keep a colony bees in such a manner as to deny 

the reasonable use and enjoyment of adjacent property or endanger the personal health and welfare 
of the inhabitants of the city. Bees shall not be kept in subdivisions of the city on property less 
than one acre. 

 
(b) A person shall keep a colony in a man-made hive that is maintained in sound and usable 
condition. 
 
(c) A person shall provide a source of water to a colony to prevent the bees from congregating at a 
water source used by a human, bird, or domestic pet. 
 
(d) A person shall store or dispose of bee comb or other material removed from a hive in a 
sealed container, building, or other bee-proof enclosure. 
 
(e) A person who keeps a colony must do so at least 25 feet from the property line of a tract, as 
measured from the nearest point of a hive to the property line, and shall establish and maintain a flyway 
barrier parallel to the property line. A person is not required to construct a flyway barrier if the apiary 
tract is adjoined by undeveloped property for a distance of at least 25 feet from the property line of the 
tract that is closest to location of the colony. Any colony must also be maintained at least 25 feet from any 
inhabited structure on the property where it is maintained or kept. 
 
(f) A person may not keep more than: 

(1) two colonies on a tract one-quarter acre or smaller; 
(2) four colonies on a tract larger than one-quarter acre but smaller than one-half acre; 
(3) six colonies on a tract one-half acre or more but smaller than one acre; 
(4) eight colonies on a tract one acre or more. 

 
(g) A person shall brand, paint, or otherwise clearly mark the apiary owner's name or telephone 
number on at least two hives placed at opposite ends of an apiary; or post a conspicuous sign displaying 
the apiary owner's name and telephone number at the entrance to the apiary tract. A person is not required 
to place owner identification on or near a colony located on a tract on which the owner resides. 
 
(h) No person may remove a colony without possessing a Bee Removal Permit issued by a 
person authorized to issue such a permit in accordance with Texas law. 
 
G)   The City may order relocation of a colony of bees not residing in a hive, a swarm of bees, or a 
colony residing in an abandoned standard or man-made hive if the relocation of the bees can be done 
without threatening human or animal health or interfering with the normal use and enjoyment of public 
or private property. If the City determines that relocation of bees under is not possible then, without notice 
and a hearing, the health authority may order destruction of a colony of bees not residing in a hive, a 
swarm of bees, or a colony residing in an abandoned standard or man-made hive. 



 

 
Section Three. Cumulative and Conflicts. This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all provisions of 
ordinances of the City of New Fairview, Texas, except where the provisions of the Ordinance are in 
direct conflict with the provisions of such ordinances, in which event the conflicting provisions of such 
ordinances are hereby repealed. Any and all previous versions of this Ordinance to the extent that they 
are in direct conflict herewith are repealed. 
 
Section Four. Savings. All rights or remedies of the City of New Fairview, are expressly saved as to any 
and all violations of Ordinance No. 2000-13-0073 as codified in Chapter 3, Animal Control, Article 3, 
General Provisions, or any amendments thereto that have accrued at the time of the effective date of this 
ordinance; and as to such accrued violations, and all pending litigation, both civil or criminal, same shall 
not be affected by this ordinance but may be prosecuted until final disposition by the courts.   
 
Section Four. Severability. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, and sections of this Ordinance are severable, and if any 
phrase, clause sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance shall be declared unconstitutional by 
the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality shall 
not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this 
Ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in 
this Ordinance of any such unconstitutional phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 
Section Five Any person, firm or corporation who violates, disobeys, omits, neglects, or refuses to 
comply with or who resists the enforcement of any of the provisions of this ordinance shall be fined 
not more than Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) for each offense. Each day that a violation is permitted 
to exist shall constitute a separate offense 
 
Section Six. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its passage, 
approval and publication as provided by law. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on this ____day of February, 2023. 

 
 

 
APPROVED:       ATTESTED: 
 
______________________     _______________________ 
John R. Taylor      Brooke Boller 
Mayor         City Secretary 



 
AGENDA ITEM: WS-4 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA MEMO 

Prepared By: John Cabrales Jr, City Administrator                                                             January 16, 2023 

Creation of a Parks & Recreation Board, and Keep New Fairview Beautiful 
Committee 

 
DESCRIPTION: 
 
Receive a report and hold a discussion regarding the creation of a Parks and Recreation Board and Keep 
New Fairview Beautiful Committee. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
On July 18, 2022, the City Council approved a contract for the construction of the City’s first park. The 
park is being funded through a Texas Parks & Wildlife Department Local Park Grant. Now that the City 
will have a park there should be an advisory body created to assist staff and the City Council in rule 
making, planning and seeking of funding for parks and recreation programs and facilities. City typically 
creates a Parks and Recreation Board and appoints residents to serve on the Board. 
 
This Board can also serve as the Keep New Fairview Beautiful Committee. This Committee can assist 
the City in becoming an affiliate of Keep Texas Beautiful (KTB) (https://ktb.org/). KTB affiliates are 
qualifying cities, counties and/or communities that work with KTB to educate and engage Texans to 
take responsibility for improving their communities. Affiliates are the volunteers who organize local 
cleanups, design and implement recycling programs, and educate local populations. KTB also has 
numerous resources available to affiliates such as grant and funding opportunities, youth programs, 
assistance with special clean up events. 
 
Staff has attached some language to consider in the creation of a Parks and Recreation Board, Keep 
New Fairview Beautiful, and park operation rules. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 
 
None 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTIONS: 
 
None, discussion only. 

https://ktb.org/


 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

1. Draft Ordinance 



 

Page 1 of 8 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS, AMENDING CITY 
CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 10, STREETS, PARKS AND OTHER PUBLIC 
WAYS AND PLACES, ARTICLE 10.1, GENERAL PROVISIONS,TO ADD ARTICLE 10.3 
AND SECTIONS 10.03.001-10.03.007, PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD, 
CONSISTING OF SEVEN (7) MEMBERS; PROVIDING THE QUALIFICATIONS OF 
THE MEMBERS THEREOF; ESTABLISHING THE POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE 
BOARD AND THE PROCEDURE UNDER WHICH THE BOARD WILL OPERATE AND 
ESTABLISHING A KEEP NEW FAIRVIEW BEAUTIFUL COMMITTEE; AND TO ADD 
ARTICLE 10.4, SECTIONS 10.04.001-10.04.007, ESTABLISHING RULES AND 
REGULATIONS REGARDING THE USE OF CITY PARKS AND PARK FACILITIES; 
PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY FOR THE VIOLATION OF THIS ORDINANCE; 
PROVIDING FOR REPEALING, SAVINGS AND SEVERABILITY CLAUSES; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS ORDINANCE; AND PROVIDING 
FOR THE PUBLICATION OF THE CAPTION THEREOF  
 
WHEREAS,  the of the City of New Fairview, Texas ("City Council") has approved creation of a 
city park created to provide recreational facilities and opportunities for its citizens; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to study and obtain public input and advice regarding park 
facilities, programs, opportunities, and related matters from time to time; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of New Fairview, Texas (“New Fairview”) has no existing organization that 
functions as a Parks and Recreation Advisory Board, therefore underscoring the need for creating 
such a Board, to provide such input and to further the preservation of the public health, comfort, 
and welfare of the citizens of New Fairview, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has investigated and determined that it will be advantageous and 
beneficial to the City and its citizens to establish rules and regulations regarding the use of City 
parks and park facilities as set forth below. 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
SECTION ONE. Findings Incorporated.  
 
The findings set forth above are incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if fully set forth 
herein. 
 
SECTION TWO. The City of New Fairview's Code of Municipal Ordinances, Chapter 10, 
Streets, Parks And Other Public Ways And Places, is hereby amended, by adding Articles 10.03, 
Parks, Sections 10.03.001-10.03.007, and Article 10.04, Sections 10.04.001- 10.04.007, with 
additions denoted by underlining, as follows:  
 



 

Page 2 of 8 

ARTICLE  10.03, PARKS  
 
Sec. 10.03.001 Creation and Purpose  
 

(A.) A Parks and Recreation Board is hereby established for the City of New Fairview.  
(B.) The Board shall serve as an advisory board to the City Council regarding the recreational 

needs of the community including: developing plans to meet the needs for future recreation 
programs, facilities, and areas; recommending policies to carry out recreational programs and 
initiatives; reviewing maintenance of recreation facilities; informing the public of recreation 
opportunities or needs; similar and related activities.  

(C.) Said Board shall have no authority to execute independent financial, employment or 
contractual transactions but may recommend same to the City Council. (D) The Board's authority 
shall not extend to the direction, supervision, employment, or termination of employees of the 
City. No supervisory power of the Board is created. 

 
Sec. 10.03.002. Members and Terms  
 

The City Council shall appoint a Parks and Recreation board of five members and one 
alternate member.  
 
(a) Members of the Parks and Recreation Board shall be residents and qualified voters of the city. 
(b) Members, including alternate members, shall be appointed by the City Council for a term of 

two (2) years, provided however, that two (2) members and the alternate member shall be 
initially appointed for a term of one (1) year, with those terms being for two (2) years 
thereafter. 

(c) If a replacement has not been designated by the end of a member's term, that member shall 
continue serving until a successor is appointed.  

(d) In the event of a vacancy, the City Council shall appoint a member to serve for the unexpired 
term. The City Council may remove any member from the Board. 

 
Sec. 10.03.003. Meetings. 
 
(a) The Parks and Recreation Board shall meet at least once every two  months, or at the call of 

the Chairperson. 
(b) A majority of members shall constitute a quorum.  
(c) Any member absent from any meeting shall be so stated in the minutes of the meeting. In the 

absence of a quorum for a meeting, the chairperson will submit or cause to have submitted a 
report to the city council stating all the members who were absent.  

(d)   Meetings shall be held at City Hall, be open to the public,  and minutes shall be filed with the 
City Secretary as a public record. 

 
Sec. 10.03.004. Officers and duties 
 
(a) Immediately after appointment, the members of the said Board shall meet and elect a 

Chairman and such other officers as may be necessary. Thereafter, each October, the members 
of the Parks and Recreation Board shall elect from their membership for one year:  



 

Page 3 of 8 

(1) A Chairperson. The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings, shall appoint standing 
committee members, and shall perform such other duties as are usually pertaining to this 
office or as may be instructed by the Board.  

(2) A Vice-Chairperson. The Vice-Chairperson shall perform the duties of the Chairperson 
in his or her absence.  

(b) The City Administrator or his designee shall serve as Staff Liaison to the Board shall and 
shall: 

(1) Keep minutes of each meeting. 
(2) Prepare the meeting minutes for Parks and Recreation Board approval. 
(3) Prepare and post meeting agendas to inform the public of what is to be discussed. 

 
Sec. 10.03.005. Powers and duties. 

The Parks and Recreation Board shall have the following powers and perform the following 
duties: 
(1) Act in an advisory capacity to the City Council in all matters pertaining to City parks 

and recreation; 
(2) Acquaint itself with and make a continuous study and inspection of the complete park 

and recreation system; 
(3) To follow a master planning guide for park buildings, structures, facilities, athletic areas, 

or other improvements on park areas; 
(4) Recommend the adoption of standards on areas, facilities, programs, and financial 

support; 
(5) Recommend to the City Council rules and regulations governing the use of facilities; 
(6) To advise the city council, and city administrator of recommendations and their reasons; 

and; 
(7) To perform such other duties as the city council may prescribe by ordinance. 

 
Sec. 10.03.006. Other subcommittees. 

  
(a) Other subcommittees. The Parks and Recreation Board, by a majority vote of the quorum 

present at any regular or special meeting, may create and appoint such members and citizens, 
as they see fit, to subcommittees to serve the purposes of the parks and recreation board. 

(b) Termination. The subcommittees described in subsection (b) of this section may be 
terminated in the same manner as they are created. Members may be terminated in the same 
manner in which they are appointed. 

 
Sec. 10.03.007. Keep New Fairview Beautiful Committee;  
 
(a) Keep New Fairview Beautiful Committee. The Keep New Fairview Beautiful Committee is 

also hereby established to serve in an advisory capacity to the City Council in the planning, 
development and implementation of litter abatement and aesthetic improvement policies 
throughout the city.  

(b) The Parks and Recreation Board shall, in addition to the other powers and authority conferred 
by this Section, serve as the Keep New Fairview Beautiful Committee. . 

 



 

Page 4 of 8 

ARTICLE 10.4. CONDUCT IN PARKS 
 
Sec. 10.04.001. Definitions. 

The following words, terms, and phrases, when used in this section , shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

Athletic field means any field located in the city which is designated an athletic field by the 
City Council, which fields shall include any stands, bleachers, dugouts, sideline areas or any areas 
on which athletic play is conducted; such athletic play shall include but shall not be limited to 
football, soccer, baseball, and softball.  

 
Park means a park, reservation, playground, recreation center, swimming pool or any area in 

the city owned or used by the city and devoted to active or passive recreation 
 
Vehicle means any device in, or by which any person or property is or may be transported or 

drawn upon, except devices moved only by human power or used exclusively upon stationary rails 
or tracks baby carriages personal mobility devices and vehicles in the service of the city or a public 
utility.  
 
Sec. 10.004.02. Hours of operation. 

The city parks shall be closed to the public between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. on 
the following day, and it shall be unlawful for any person to enter or be found in city parks between 
such hours, except for events approved or scheduled by the city administrator or city council. 
 
Sec. 10.004.03. Facility and program fees. 

The city shall charge and collect the fees for the use of buildings and facilities and for 
recreational programs and services in the amounts established in a "Master Fee Schedule" adopted 
from time to time by ordinance of the city council. 
 
Sec. 10.004.04. Unlawful acts. 

Within the limits of any city park, it shall be unlawful for any person to do any of the 
following acts except as may be otherwise provided:  

 
(1) Use of Vehicles: 

a. It shall be unlawful for any person to drive any vehicle on park roads at a rate of 
speed in excess of that which is reasonable and prudent under the conditions and 
circumstances then prevailing, taking into account the conditions of the roadways 
and other motor and pedestrian traffic therein, and in no event shall any person 
drive in or through any park property at a rate of speed in excess of twenty (20) 
miles per hour unless otherwise posted. 

b. It shall be unlawful for any person to ride, use or operate any horse, motorcycle, 
motor scooter or any other vehicle in or upon any area contained within a City 
park, except on the designated roadways, parking areas or equestrian trails, if any. 
 



 

Page 5 of 8 

(2) Driving and parking vehicles  
a. No vehicle shall be driven or parked over or across curbs, sidewalks, grass, or lawn 

within any park area unless signs permit. When vehicles are parked or left in 
violation of this section and the owner or operator of the vehicle cannot be found, 
the city may tow the vehicle 

b. No vehicle may be parked overnight, except the City of New Fairview city 
vehicles, or other vehicles authorized by the City. Vehicles in violation may be 
towed at the owner’s expense 
 

(3) Unlawful to Damage Plants in Parks or Other Recreational Facilities  
 

a. To damage, cut, break, injure, any tree, shrub, plant, rock, or to pick, pluck, pull up, cut, 
take, or remove any shrub, bush, plant, or flower or to remove any wood, turf, grass, soil, 
rock, sand, gravel or fertilizer within or upon any parks, parkways, greenbelts, or other 
recreational areas.  

b. It shall further be prohibited to bring in any vegetation to any park, parkway, greenbelt, 
or other recreational area or facility except by permit of the City Administrator or 
designated representative. For the purposes of this section, plants shall be defined to 
include any vegetation, shrubs, bushes, trees, vines, hedges, grasses, flowers, or the seeds 
thereof. 

(3) Unlawful to place dyes or detergents in water or impede flow of water in fountains 
or pools 
It shall be unlawful to place dyes, detergents, or, in any way, clog or impede the flow of 
water in any public fountain, reflective pool, swimming pool, stream, or waterfall. 

 
(4) Fires 

Fires shall be permitted in City parks and public property only in enclosed fireplaces or 
grills provided for this purpose, except with written permission of the City 
Administrator, or his authorized representative, and then only in designated areas. The 
same rule shall apply for ceremonial bonfires. It shall be unlawful to leave an area 
without extinguishing a fire. Privately owned charcoal grills are not permitted on grass 
areas or on picnic tables. After use, coals shall be thoroughly extinguished with water 
and cooled and then disposed of in a trash can. No fires are permitted during Wise 
County burn bans. 
 

(5) Overnight Camping 
Overnight camping shall be prohibited in a City park or on public property except by 
special permission of the City Manager or his designated representative. Permits may be 
issued only to those groups whose program includes camping, both overnight and day, 
and whose leaders, as well as participants, have received special training in camping and 
related activities. Permits shall only be for designated areas. Each person camping under 
a permit shall obey all park rules and regulations and restore the camp site to its original 
condition  

(6) Park Hours 



 

Page 6 of 8 

a.  A person commits an offense if the person enters or remains on park property when the 
park is closed, as provided by Section 10.24. 

b. It is a defense to prosecution under subsection “b.” of this subsection 10.27(5), that a 
person was on park property between midnight and 6:00 a.m.; and 

1. Was attending an event for which a permit extending park hours had been issued 
by the City Manager or his designee; or 

2. A sign had been posted on the park property by the City extending park hours and 
the person was on park property during the posted, extended park hours 

(7)  Unauthorized sale of goods within park unlawful 
It shall be unlawful to offer any goods, services, or thing for sale within parks, parkways, 
or other recreational facilities, except in commercial areas where property zoned for 
retail and commercial use has a certificate of occupancy for such business purposes or 
unless specifically authorized by the City Manager or his designee.  
 

(8)  Protracted sleeping or lounging and disorderly conduct in park unlawful 
It shall be prohibited to sleep or protractedly lounge on the seats, benches, or other areas 
or engage in loud, boisterous, threatening, abusive, insulting, or indecent language, or 
engage in any disorderly conduct or behavior tending to cause a breach of the public 
peace in any park or other public facility. 
 

(9) Unlawful to possess glass drink containers or take broken glass and other 
dangerous objects on public property  
For any person to possess any glass container within any city park or athletic field in the 
city, including all areas or structures within the boundaries of any park or athletic field 
within the city. It shall also be unlawful to willfully break bottles or other glass, or 
similarly dangerous objects on any park or City-controlled public property.  

  
(10) Unlawful to leave minor child unattended 

It shall be unlawful for a parent, guardian, or any other type of custodian to abandon, or, 
in any way, leave unattended a minor child (under seven (7) years) in a park or recreation 
facility, except for a supervised program or activity. 
 

(11) Use of Bicycles, Skates, In-Line Skates, Skateboards, Coasters, and Other Similar 
Recreational and Non-recreational Devices.  

 
a. Bicycle riding, skating, in-line skating, skateboarding and/or the use of coasters and/or 

other similar recreational and/or non-recreational devices, whether motorized or non-
motorized, shall be governed by safe riding practices and consideration for use of park 
areas by others.  

 
b. Where special parking provisions have been made for bicycles, skates, in-line skates, 

skateboards, coasters and/or other similar recreational and/or non-recreational devices, 
whether motorized or non-motorized, parking shall be limited to that area. 

 



 

Page 7 of 8 

c. Bicycle riding, skating, in-line skating, skateboarding and/or the use of coasters and/or 
other similar recreational and/or non-recreational devices, whether motorized or non-
motorized, shall be prohibited upon any playground, flowerbed, pedestrian-only 
sidewalk, tennis court, painted concrete, laminate surface, athletic court, picnic pavilion 
and/or any other area designated by City of New Fairview or in any area where other 
activities are in progress. 

 
Sec. 10.004.05. Enforcement. 

The Code Enforcement Officer shall, in connection with their duties imposed by law, 
diligently enforce the provisions of this article. 
 
Sec. 10.004.06. Violation; penalty. 

Any person violating the provisions of this article shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor 
and, upon conviction in the municipal court of the city, shall be subject to a fine not to exceed the 
sum of $500.00 for each offense; and each day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to 
constitute a separate offense. unless the violation relates to fire safety, zoning or public health and 
sanitation, including dumping and refuse, in which the fine shall not exceed the sum of $2,000.00. 
Each continuing day's violation and each occurrence in violation of this Ordinance shall constitute 
a separate and distinct offense. The penal provisions imposed under this Ordinance shall not 
preclude the City of New Fairview from filing suit to enjoin the violation nor shall it preclude the 
City of New Fairview from taking such other lawful action as is necessary to prevent or remedy 
any violation. The City of New Fairview retains all legal rights and remedies available to it 
pursuant to local, state, and federal law 
 
Sec. 10.004.07 Liability of the City.  
 The City shall not be held liable or responsible for any loss or damage to personal property 
or for any loss, damage, personal injury, serious bodily injury or death of any person or animal 
entering into, within or using a park. 
 
SECTION THREE. Cumulative and Conflicts. This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all 
provisions of ordinances of the City of New Fairview, Texas, except where the provisions of the 
Ordinance are in direct conflict with the provisions of such ordinances, in which event the conflicting 
provisions of such ordinances are hereby repealed. Any and all previous versions of this Ordinance to 
the extent that they are in direct conflict herewith are repealed. 
 
SECTION FOUR. Severability. It is hereby declaparagraph, the intention of the City Council 
that the phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, and sections of this Ordinance are severable, and 
if any phrase, clause sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance shall be declared 
unconstitutional by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
unconstitutionality shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs 
and sections of this Ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council 
without the incorporation in this Ordinance of any such unconstitutional phrase, clause, sentence, 
paragraph or section. 
 
SECTION FIVE. Effective Date.  
This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its passage, approval and publication as 
provided by law. 



 

Page 8 of 8 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on this ____day of February, 2023. 

 
 

 
APPROVED:       ATTESTED: 
 
______________________     _______________________ 
John R. Taylor      Brooke Boller 
Mayor         City Secretary 
 













Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Current Period
Nov 2022
Nov 2022

Actual

Year-To-Date
Oct 2022
Nov 2022

Actual

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023
Variance

Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Percent of
Budget 

Revenue & Expenditures
Revenue

Revenues
Fines & Fees

4501     Court Fines                   20,000.00 837.39 1,270.82 (18,729.18) 6.35%
Total Fines & Fees $20,000.00 $837.39 $1,270.82 ($18,729.18)

Franchise Fees
4301     Franchise Fees                50,000.00 1,546.17 2,977.71 (47,022.29) 5.96%

Total Franchise Fees $50,000.00 $1,546.17 $2,977.71 ($47,022.29)
Other Revenue

4901     Other Revenue                 154,000.00 0.00 0.00 (154,000.00) 0.00%
4906     Sponsorship                   5,000.00 0.00 1,031.10 (3,968.90) 20.62%

Total Other Revenue $159,000.00 $0.00 $1,031.10 ($157,968.90)
Permits

4401     Construction Permits          500,000.00 1,861.30 34,805.54 (465,194.46) 6.96%
4403     Contractor Registration       3,600.00 206.00 927.00 (2,673.00) 25.75%
4402     Septic Permits                14,000.00 2,472.30 4,969.20 (9,030.80) 35.49%

Total Permits $517,600.00 $4,539.60 $40,701.74 ($476,898.26)
Property Tax

4101     Current Property Tax          656,790.05 45,382.48 62,855.38 (593,934.67) 9.57%
Total Property Tax $656,790.05 $45,382.48 $62,855.38 ($593,934.67)

Sales Tax
4201     Sales/ Beverage Tax           378,000.00 36,402.88 79,686.86 (298,313.14) 21.08%

Total Sales Tax $378,000.00 $36,402.88 $79,686.86 ($298,313.14)
Revenues Totals $1,781,390.05 $88,708.52 $188,523.61 ($1,592,866.44)

Total  Revenue $1,781,390.05 $88,708.52 $188,523.61 ($1,592,866.44)
Total  Gross Profit $1,781,390.05 $88,708.52 $188,523.61  

Expenses
City Administration

Contract Labor
5101     Contract Labor                6,240.00 1,530.60 2,090.60 4,149.40 33.50%
5111     Information Technology        8,000.00 0.00 0.00 8,000.00 0.00%
5108     Legal Expenses                50,000.00 7,585.51 7,585.51 42,414.49 15.17%
5113     Website                       10,000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00%

Total Contract Labor $74,240.00 $9,116.11 $9,676.11 $64,563.89

1/13/2023 GENERAL FUND Page 1 of 8
2:48 PM Statement of Revenue and Expenditures



Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Current Period
Nov 2022
Nov 2022

Actual

Year-To-Date
Oct 2022
Nov 2022

Actual

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023
Variance

Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Percent of
Budget 

Salaries & Payroll
5011     Deferred Compensation         6,000.00 0.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00%
5007     FICA - Payroll Taxes          9,157.05 0.00 0.00 9,157.05 0.00%
5006     Health Insurance              10,740.96 131.34 1,842.58 8,898.38 17.15%
5004     Longevity Pay                 100.00 100.00 100.00  100.00%
5012     LTD, STD and Life             456.00 0.00 0.00 456.00 0.00%
5001     Salaries                      119,700.00 21,503.34 43,006.68 76,693.32 35.93%
5005     TMRS                          7,636.86 2,419.01 4,838.02 2,798.84 63.35%
5010     Unemployment                  3,591.00 0.00 0.00 3,591.00 0.00%
5008     Worker's Comp                 400.00 0.00 3.89 396.11 0.97%

Total Salaries & Payroll $157,781.87 $24,153.69 $49,791.17 $107,990.70
Services

5340     Auditor                       7,000.00 0.00 0.00 7,000.00 0.00%
5375     Chapter 380                   84,000.00 0.00 0.00 84,000.00 0.00%
5361     Credit Card Fees              20,000.00 178.57 357.59 19,642.41 1.79%
5315     Electric / Trash              2,000.00 92.36 219.77 1,780.23 10.99%
5320     Equipment Rental              500.00 44.00 44.00 456.00 8.80%
5335     Internet/Telephone            1,500.00 647.23 1,361.63 138.37 90.78%
5355     Miscellaneous Expense         33,618.00 0.00 0.00 33,618.00 0.00%
5365     Penalties Expense             1,200.00 0.00 0.00 1,200.00 0.00%
5350     Professional Services         5,000.00 0.00 50.00 4,950.00 1.00%
5360     Prop Tax Collection Fees      14,200.00 0.00 0.00 14,200.00 0.00%
5310     Software                      15,500.00 669.57 2,810.00 12,690.00 18.13%
5380     TML Insurance                 8,430.20 0.00 2,728.20 5,702.00 32.36%
5322     Training/ Dues/ Memberships  4,600.00 467.92 1,811.58 2,788.42 39.38%

Total Services $197,548.20 $2,099.65 $9,382.77 $188,165.43
Supplies

5202     Equipment                     500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00%
5299     Miscellaneous Supplies        500.00 0.00 159.57 340.43 31.91%
5201     Office Supplies               2,500.00 71.34 1,073.26 1,426.74 42.93%
5207     Postage                       0.00 31.40 31.40 (31.40) 0.00%

Total Supplies $3,500.00 $102.74 $1,264.23 $2,235.77
City Administration Totals $433,070.07 $35,472.19 $70,114.28 $362,955.79

City Council
Contract Labor

5108     Legal Expenses                15,000.00 4,662.00 4,662.00 10,338.00 31.08%
Total Contract Labor $15,000.00 $4,662.00 $4,662.00 $10,338.00

1/13/2023 GENERAL FUND Page 2 of 8
2:48 PM Statement of Revenue and Expenditures



Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Current Period
Nov 2022
Nov 2022

Actual

Year-To-Date
Oct 2022
Nov 2022

Actual

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023
Variance

Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Percent of
Budget 

Services
5370     Election Expense              5,000.00 626.65 626.65 4,373.35 12.53%
5310     Software                      120.00 0.00 0.00 120.00 0.00%
5322     Training/ Dues/ Memberships  15,000.00 631.38 2,331.85 12,668.15 15.55%

Total Services $20,120.00 $1,258.03 $2,958.50 $17,161.50
Supplies

5299     Miscellaneous Supplies        300.00 0.00 0.00 300.00 0.00%
5201     Office Supplies               2,000.00 0.00 100.00 1,900.00 5.00%

Total Supplies $2,300.00 $0.00 $100.00 $2,200.00
City Council Totals $37,420.00 $5,920.03 $7,720.50 $29,699.50

City Secretary
Contract Labor

5108     Legal Expenses                10,000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00%
Total Contract Labor $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00

Salaries & Payroll
5007     FICA - Payroll Taxes          4,417.88 337.40 668.32 3,749.56 15.13%
5006     Health Insurance              10,740.96 131.33 1,842.57 8,898.39 17.15%
5004     Longevity Pay                 64.00 208.00 208.00 (144.00) 325.00%
5012     LTD, STD and Life             945.34 0.00 0.00 945.34 0.00%
5001     Salaries                      57,750.00 4,442.32 8,831.75 48,918.25 15.29%
5005     TMRS                          3,684.45 537.96 1,069.52 2,614.93 29.03%
5008     Worker's Comp                 320.00 0.00 3.88 316.12 1.21%

Total Salaries & Payroll $77,922.63 $5,657.01 $12,624.04 $65,298.59
Services

5315     Electric / Trash              2,000.00 92.33 219.72 1,780.28 10.99%
5320     Equipment Rental              1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00%
5335     Internet/Telephone            1,000.00 0.00 67.17 932.83 6.72%
5305     Legal Notices                 2,000.00 1,705.00 1,705.00 295.00 85.25%
5355     Miscellaneous Expense         0.00 0.00 66.21 (66.21) 0.00%
5310     Software                      7,695.00 0.00 16.23 7,678.77 0.21%
5322     Training/ Dues/ Memberships  7,500.00 334.00 1,752.20 5,747.80 23.36%

Total Services $21,195.00 $2,131.33 $3,826.53 $17,368.47
Supplies

5202     Equipment                     500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00%
5299     Miscellaneous Supplies        1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00%
5201     Office Supplies               2,000.00 300.31 336.22 1,663.78 16.81%

1/13/2023 GENERAL FUND Page 3 of 8
2:48 PM Statement of Revenue and Expenditures



Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Current Period
Nov 2022
Nov 2022

Actual

Year-To-Date
Oct 2022
Nov 2022

Actual

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023
Variance

Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Percent of
Budget 

5207     Postage                       400.00 0.00 0.00 400.00 0.00%
Total Supplies $3,900.00 $300.31 $336.22 $3,563.78

City Secretary Totals $113,017.63 $8,088.65 $16,786.79 $96,230.84
Court

Contract Labor
5108     Legal Expenses                5,000.00 1,981.50 2,081.70 2,918.30 41.63%
5106     Municipal Judge               2,400.00 750.00 1,050.00 1,350.00 43.75%

Total Contract Labor $7,400.00 $2,731.50 $3,131.70 $4,268.30
Salaries & Payroll

5007     FICA - Payroll Taxes          3,842.75 0.00 0.00 3,842.75 0.00%
5006     Health Insurance              10,740.96 0.00 0.00 10,740.96 0.00%
5004     Longevity Pay                 64.00 100.00 100.00 (36.00) 156.25%
5012     LTD, STD and Life             561.70 0.00 0.00 561.70 0.00%
5003     Overtime                      5,000.00 0.00 24.64 4,975.36 0.49%
5001     Salaries                      50,232.00 3,637.58 7,764.73 42,467.27 15.46%
5005     TMRS                          3,204.80 409.20 876.26 2,328.54 27.34%
5008     Worker's Comp                 320.00 0.00 3.88 316.12 1.21%

Total Salaries & Payroll $73,966.21 $4,146.78 $8,769.51 $65,196.70
Services

5315     Electric / Trash              2,000.00 92.33 219.72 1,780.28 10.99%
5320     Equipment Rental              2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00%
5335     Internet/Telephone            1,000.00 0.00 67.16 932.84 6.72%
5355     Miscellaneous Expense         10,000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00%
5325     Municipal Judge Training      350.00 0.00 0.00 350.00 0.00%
5350     Professional Services         1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00%
5322     Training/ Dues/ Memberships  2,450.00 105.00 1,970.50 479.50 80.43%

Total Services $18,800.00 $197.33 $2,257.38 $16,542.62
Supplies

5202     Equipment                     500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00%
5299     Miscellaneous Supplies        500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00%
5201     Office Supplies               1,500.00 0.00 224.99 1,275.01 15.00%
5207     Postage                       500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00%
5222     Signs                         500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00%

Total Supplies $3,500.00 $0.00 $224.99 $3,275.01
Court Totals $103,666.21 $7,075.61 $14,383.58 $89,282.63

1/13/2023 GENERAL FUND Page 4 of 8
2:48 PM Statement of Revenue and Expenditures



Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Current Period
Nov 2022
Nov 2022

Actual

Year-To-Date
Oct 2022
Nov 2022

Actual

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023
Variance

Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Percent of
Budget 

Health/Code Enforcement
Contract Labor

5112     Abatement                     15,000.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00%
5104     Animal Control                2,000.00 0.00 50.00 1,950.00 2.50%
5108     Legal Expenses                3,000.00 777.00 777.00 2,223.00 25.90%
5103     Septic Inspector              5,500.00 0.00 0.00 5,500.00 0.00%

Total Contract Labor $25,500.00 $777.00 $827.00 $24,673.00
Services

5390     Cleanup Days                  2,475.00 0.00 138.00 2,337.00 5.58%
5320     Equipment Rental              1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00%
5310     Software                      1,400.00 0.00 0.00 1,400.00 0.00%
5322     Training/ Dues/ Memberships  1,760.00 0.00 0.00 1,760.00 0.00%

Total Services $6,635.00 $0.00 $138.00 $6,497.00
Supplies

5299     Miscellaneous Supplies        0.00 106.95 106.95 (106.95) 0.00%
5222     Signs                         0.00 0.00 121.98 (121.98) 0.00%

Total Supplies $0.00 $106.95 $228.93 ($228.93)
Health/Code Enforcement Totals $32,135.00 $883.95 $1,193.93 $30,941.07

Parks & Recreation
Services

5385     Building Repairs              500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00%
5320     Equipment Rental              4,000.00 0.00 0.00 4,000.00 0.00%
5355     Miscellaneous Expense         4,000.00 136.91 136.91 3,863.09 3.42%
5304     Special Events                10,500.00 2,458.90 3,692.31 6,807.69 35.16%

Total Services $19,000.00 $2,595.81 $3,829.22 $15,170.78
Supplies

5202     Equipment                     1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00%
5299     Miscellaneous Supplies        500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00%
5201     Office Supplies               500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00%

Total Supplies $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00
Parks & Recreation Totals $21,000.00 $2,595.81 $3,829.22 $17,170.78

Planning & Development
Contract Labor

5105     Building Inspector            60,000.00 4,575.00 8,400.00 51,600.00 14.00%
5109     City Engineer                 25,000.00 0.00 2,457.22 22,542.78 9.83%
5110     City Planner                  40,000.00 4,066.88 4,066.88 35,933.12 10.17%

1/13/2023 GENERAL FUND Page 5 of 8
2:48 PM Statement of Revenue and Expenditures



Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Current Period
Nov 2022
Nov 2022

Actual

Year-To-Date
Oct 2022
Nov 2022

Actual

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023
Variance

Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Percent of
Budget 

5108     Legal Expenses                5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00%
Total Contract Labor $130,000.00 $8,641.88 $14,924.10 $115,075.90

Services
5350     Professional Services         15,700.00 0.00 0.00 15,700.00 0.00%
5310     Software                      700.00 0.00 0.00 700.00 0.00%

Total Services $16,400.00 $0.00 $0.00 $16,400.00
Supplies

5201     Office Supplies               1,500.00 0.00 466.84 1,033.16 31.12%
Total Supplies $1,500.00 $0.00 $466.84 $1,033.16

Planning & Development Totals $147,900.00 $8,641.88 $15,390.94 $132,509.06
Public Safety

Capital Outlay
6030     Buildings - Capital           17,270.00 6,617.21 10,362.21 6,907.79 60.00%
6060     Buildings - Extractor         10,450.00 0.00 0.00 10,450.00 0.00%

Total Capital Outlay $27,720.00 $6,617.21 $10,362.21 $17,357.79
City Projects

5645     EMS Buildout                  0.00 100.66 100.66 (100.66) 0.00%
Total City Projects $0.00 $100.66 $100.66 ($100.66)

Contract Labor
5107     Contract Deputies             44,000.00 2,993.87 3,370.63 40,629.37 7.66%
5101     Contract Labor                37,400.00 3,200.00 6,400.00 31,000.00 17.11%

Total Contract Labor $81,400.00 $6,193.87 $9,770.63 $71,629.37
Services

5385     Building Repairs              0.00 0.00 959.97 (959.97) 0.00%
5322     Training/ Dues/ Memberships  2,200.00 0.00 178.00 2,022.00 8.09%

Total Services $2,200.00 $0.00 $1,137.97 $1,062.03
Supplies

5202     Equipment                     0.00 0.00 200.95 (200.95) 0.00%
Total Supplies $0.00 $0.00 $200.95 ($200.95)

Public Safety Totals $111,320.00 $12,911.74 $21,572.42 $89,747.58
Public Works

Capital Outlay
6030     Buildings - Capital           35,000.00 0.00 0.00 35,000.00 0.00%
6020     Equipment - Capital           92,000.00 0.00 0.00 92,000.00 0.00%
6010     Vehicles - Capital            65,000.00 0.00 0.00 65,000.00 0.00%

Total Capital Outlay $192,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $192,000.00

1/13/2023 GENERAL FUND Page 6 of 8
2:48 PM Statement of Revenue and Expenditures



Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Current Period
Nov 2022
Nov 2022

Actual

Year-To-Date
Oct 2022
Nov 2022

Actual

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023
Variance

Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Percent of
Budget 

City Projects
5655     CDBG                          0.00 475.00 1,983.38 (1,983.38) 0.00%
5630     TDLR                          10,300.00 7,780.02 10,638.83 (338.83) 103.29%

Total City Projects $10,300.00 $8,255.02 $12,622.21 ($2,322.21)
Contract Labor

5105     Building Inspector            750.00 0.00 0.00 750.00 0.00%
5101     Contract Labor                15,000.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00%
5102     Public Infrastructure         5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00%

Total Contract Labor $20,750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $20,750.00
Salaries & Payroll

5007     FICA - Payroll Taxes          8,103.19 0.00 0.00 8,103.19 0.00%
5006     Health Insurance              21,481.92 131.34 1,842.58 19,639.34 8.58%
5004     Longevity Pay                 64.00 136.00 136.00 (72.00) 212.50%
5012     LTD, STD and Life             1,890.67 0.00 0.00 1,890.67 0.00%
5003     Overtime                      5,000.00 784.99 1,586.62 3,413.38 31.73%
5001     Salaries                      105,924.00 8,060.22 16,304.94 89,619.06 15.39%
5005     TMRS                          6,757.95 736.02 1,466.39 5,291.56 21.70%
5010     Unemployment                  3,177.72 0.00 0.00 3,177.72 0.00%
5008     Worker's Comp                 640.00 0.00 3.89 636.11 0.61%

Total Salaries & Payroll $153,039.45 $9,848.57 $21,340.42 $131,699.03
Services

5385     Building Repairs              15,000.00 335.76 335.76 14,664.24 2.24%
5315     Electric / Trash              12,000.00 689.98 1,603.13 10,396.87 13.36%
5320     Equipment Rental              5,000.00 0.00 1,497.28 3,502.72 29.95%
5301     Fuel                          8,000.00 726.74 1,528.49 6,471.51 19.11%
5335     Internet/Telephone            1,030.00 0.00 0.00 1,030.00 0.00%
5355     Miscellaneous Expense         1,500.00 (4.41) (4.41) 1,504.41 (0.29%)
5395     Road Maintenance              50,000.00 0.00 2,563.94 47,436.06 5.13%
5345     Street Lights                 11,940.00 474.24 965.52 10,974.48 8.09%
5303     Tolls                         50.00 0.00 0.00 50.00 0.00%
5302     Tractor/ Truck Repairs        8,000.00 0.00 562.93 7,437.07 7.04%
5322     Training/ Dues/ Memberships  4,410.00 0.00 190.00 4,220.00 4.31%

Total Services $116,930.00 $2,222.31 $9,242.64 $107,687.36
Supplies

5202     Equipment                     7,500.00 0.00 1,661.64 5,838.36 22.16%
5299     Miscellaneous Supplies        2,000.00 0.00 42.24 1,957.76 2.11%
5201     Office Supplies               3,000.00 0.00 40.00 2,960.00 1.33%

1/13/2023 GENERAL FUND Page 7 of 8
2:48 PM Statement of Revenue and Expenditures



Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Current Period
Nov 2022
Nov 2022

Actual

Year-To-Date
Oct 2022
Nov 2022

Actual

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023
Variance

Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Percent of
Budget 

5207     Postage                       500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00%
5222     Signs                         8,000.00 10.76 10.76 7,989.24 0.13%
5203     Uniforms                      3,500.00 20.98 20.98 3,479.02 0.60%

Total Supplies $24,500.00 $31.74 $1,775.62 $22,724.38
Public Works Totals $517,519.45 $20,357.64 $44,980.89 $472,538.56

Revenues
Services

5322     Training/ Dues/ Memberships  0.00 (40.70) (40.70) 40.70 0.00%
Total Services $0.00 ($40.70) ($40.70) $40.70

Revenues Totals $0.00 ($40.70) ($40.70) $40.70
Total  Expenses $1,517,048.36 $101,906.80 $195,931.85 $1,321,116.51

Total  Revenue Less Expenditures $264,341.69 ($13,198.28) ($7,408.24)  

Transfers Out
Parks & Recreation

Transfer Expense
9100     Transfers Out                 142,973.00 0.00 0.00 142,973.00 0.00%

Total Transfer Expense $142,973.00 $0.00 $0.00 $142,973.00
Parks & Recreation Totals $142,973.00 $0.00 $0.00 $142,973.00

Public Works
Transfer Expense

9100     Transfers Out                 85,000.00 0.00 0.00 85,000.00 0.00%
Total Transfer Expense $85,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $85,000.00

Public Works Totals $85,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $85,000.00
Total  Transfers Out $227,973.00 $0.00 $0.00 $227,973.00

Total  Net Change in Fund Balance $36,368.69 ($13,198.28) ($7,408.24)  

Fund Balances
Beginning Fund Balance 0.00 1,877,269.11 1,871,479.07  0.00%
Net Change in Fund Balance 36,368.69 (13,198.28) (7,408.24)  0.00%
Ending Fund Balance 0.00 1,864,070.83 1,864,070.83  0.00%

1/13/2023 GENERAL FUND Page 8 of 8
2:48 PM Statement of Revenue and Expenditures



Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Current Period
Dec 2022
Dec 2022

Actual

Year-To-Date
Oct 2022
Dec 2022

Actual

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023
Variance

Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Percent of
Budget 

Revenue & Expenditures
Revenue

Revenues
Fines & Fees

4501     Court Fines                   20,000.00 882.80 2,153.62 (17,846.38) 10.77%
Total Fines & Fees $20,000.00 $882.80 $2,153.62 ($17,846.38)

Franchise Fees
4301     Franchise Fees                50,000.00 6,071.94 9,049.65 (40,950.35) 18.10%

Total Franchise Fees $50,000.00 $6,071.94 $9,049.65 ($40,950.35)
Other Revenue

4901     Other Revenue                 154,000.00 81.00 81.00 (153,919.00) 0.05%
4906     Sponsorship                   5,000.00 1,000.00 2,031.10 (2,968.90) 40.62%

Total Other Revenue $159,000.00 $1,081.00 $2,112.10 ($156,887.90)
Permits

4401     Construction Permits          500,000.00 28,918.77 63,724.31 (436,275.69) 12.74%
4403     Contractor Registration       3,600.00 100.00 1,027.00 (2,573.00) 28.53%
4402     Septic Permits                14,000.00 0.00 4,969.20 (9,030.80) 35.49%

Total Permits $517,600.00 $29,018.77 $69,720.51 ($447,879.49)
Property Tax

4101     Current Property Tax          656,790.05 181,846.04 244,701.42 (412,088.63) 37.26%
Total Property Tax $656,790.05 $181,846.04 $244,701.42 ($412,088.63)

Sales Tax
4201     Sales/ Beverage Tax           378,000.00 49,459.14 129,146.00 (248,854.00) 34.17%

Total Sales Tax $378,000.00 $49,459.14 $129,146.00 ($248,854.00)
Revenues Totals $1,781,390.05 $268,359.69 $456,883.30 ($1,324,506.75)

Total  Revenue $1,781,390.05 $268,359.69 $456,883.30 ($1,324,506.75)
Total  Gross Profit $1,781,390.05 $268,359.69 $456,883.30  

Expenses
City Administration

Contract Labor
5101     Contract Labor                6,240.00 2,079.60 4,170.20 2,069.80 66.83%
5111     Information Technology        8,000.00 0.00 0.00 8,000.00 0.00%
5108     Legal Expenses                50,000.00 3,916.69 11,502.20 38,497.80 23.00%
5113     Website                       10,000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00%

Total Contract Labor $74,240.00 $5,996.29 $15,672.40 $58,567.60

1/13/2023 GENERAL FUND Page 1 of 9
2:58 PM Statement of Revenue and Expenditures



Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Current Period
Dec 2022
Dec 2022

Actual

Year-To-Date
Oct 2022
Dec 2022

Actual

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023
Variance

Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Percent of
Budget 

Other Expense
7185     Transfer Out - Special Rev    0.00 17,098.74 17,098.74 (17,098.74) 0.00%

Total Other Expense $0.00 $17,098.74 $17,098.74 ($17,098.74)
Salaries & Payroll

5011     Deferred Compensation         6,000.00 11,206.00 11,206.00 (5,206.00) 186.77%
5007     FICA - Payroll Taxes          9,157.05 0.00 0.00 9,157.05 0.00%
5006     Health Insurance              10,740.96 2,358.86 4,201.44 6,539.52 39.12%
5004     Longevity Pay                 100.00 0.00 100.00  100.00%
5012     LTD, STD and Life             456.00 0.00 0.00 456.00 0.00%
5001     Salaries                      119,700.00 12,716.36 55,723.04 63,976.96 46.55%
5005     TMRS                          7,636.86 2,691.14 7,529.16 107.70 98.59%
5010     Unemployment                  3,591.00 0.00 0.00 3,591.00 0.00%
5008     Worker's Comp                 400.00 0.00 3.89 396.11 0.97%

Total Salaries & Payroll $157,781.87 $28,972.36 $78,763.53 $79,018.34
Services

5340     Auditor                       7,000.00 0.00 0.00 7,000.00 0.00%
5375     Chapter 380                   84,000.00 0.00 0.00 84,000.00 0.00%
5361     Credit Card Fees              20,000.00 129.11 486.70 19,513.30 2.43%
5315     Electric / Trash              2,000.00 120.74 340.51 1,659.49 17.03%
5320     Equipment Rental              500.00 0.00 44.00 456.00 8.80%
5335     Internet/Telephone            1,500.00 848.75 2,210.38 (710.38) 147.36%
5355     Miscellaneous Expense         33,618.00 0.00 0.00 33,618.00 0.00%
5365     Penalties Expense             1,200.00 0.00 0.00 1,200.00 0.00%
5350     Professional Services         5,000.00 0.00 50.00 4,950.00 1.00%
5360     Prop Tax Collection Fees      14,200.00 4,324.94 4,324.94 9,875.06 30.46%
5310     Software                      15,500.00 1,496.22 4,306.22 11,193.78 27.78%
5380     TML Insurance                 8,430.20 0.00 2,728.20 5,702.00 32.36%
5322     Training/ Dues/ Memberships  4,600.00 719.96 2,531.54 2,068.46 55.03%

Total Services $197,548.20 $7,639.72 $17,022.49 $180,525.71
Supplies

5202     Equipment                     500.00 170.00 170.00 330.00 34.00%
5299     Miscellaneous Supplies        500.00 0.00 159.57 340.43 31.91%
5201     Office Supplies               2,500.00 69.99 1,143.25 1,356.75 45.73%
5207     Postage                       0.00 0.00 31.40 (31.40) 0.00%

Total Supplies $3,500.00 $239.99 $1,504.22 $1,995.78
City Administration Totals $433,070.07 $59,947.10 $130,061.38 $303,008.69

1/13/2023 GENERAL FUND Page 2 of 9
2:58 PM Statement of Revenue and Expenditures



Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Current Period
Dec 2022
Dec 2022

Actual

Year-To-Date
Oct 2022
Dec 2022

Actual

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023
Variance

Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Percent of
Budget 

City Council
Contract Labor

5108     Legal Expenses                15,000.00 2,562.00 7,224.00 7,776.00 48.16%
Total Contract Labor $15,000.00 $2,562.00 $7,224.00 $7,776.00

Services
5370     Election Expense              5,000.00 503.50 1,130.15 3,869.85 22.60%
5310     Software                      120.00 0.00 0.00 120.00 0.00%
5322     Training/ Dues/ Memberships  15,000.00 632.00 2,963.85 12,036.15 19.76%

Total Services $20,120.00 $1,135.50 $4,094.00 $16,026.00
Supplies

5213     Council Supplies              0.00 74.58 74.58 (74.58) 0.00%
5299     Miscellaneous Supplies        300.00 0.00 0.00 300.00 0.00%
5201     Office Supplies               2,000.00 0.00 100.00 1,900.00 5.00%

Total Supplies $2,300.00 $74.58 $174.58 $2,125.42
City Council Totals $37,420.00 $3,772.08 $11,492.58 $25,927.42

City Secretary
Contract Labor

5108     Legal Expenses                10,000.00 950.00 950.00 9,050.00 9.50%
Total Contract Labor $10,000.00 $950.00 $950.00 $9,050.00

Salaries & Payroll
5007     FICA - Payroll Taxes          4,417.88 422.36 1,090.68 3,327.20 24.69%
5006     Health Insurance              10,740.96 2,358.84 4,201.41 6,539.55 39.12%
5004     Longevity Pay                 64.00 0.00 208.00 (144.00) 325.00%
5012     LTD, STD and Life             945.34 0.00 0.00 945.34 0.00%
5001     Salaries                      57,750.00 5,552.90 14,384.65 43,365.35 24.91%
5005     TMRS                          3,684.45 672.45 1,741.97 1,942.48 47.28%
5008     Worker's Comp                 320.00 0.00 3.88 316.12 1.21%

Total Salaries & Payroll $77,922.63 $9,006.55 $21,630.59 $56,292.04
Services

5315     Electric / Trash              2,000.00 120.72 340.44 1,659.56 17.02%
5320     Equipment Rental              1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00%
5335     Internet/Telephone            1,000.00 201.50 268.67 731.33 26.87%
5305     Legal Notices                 2,000.00 0.00 1,705.00 295.00 85.25%
5355     Miscellaneous Expense         0.00 0.00 66.21 (66.21) 0.00%
5310     Software                      7,695.00 21.64 37.87 7,657.13 0.49%
5322     Training/ Dues/ Memberships  7,500.00 0.00 1,752.20 5,747.80 23.36%

Total Services $21,195.00 $343.86 $4,170.39 $17,024.61

1/13/2023 GENERAL FUND Page 3 of 9
2:58 PM Statement of Revenue and Expenditures



Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Current Period
Dec 2022
Dec 2022

Actual

Year-To-Date
Oct 2022
Dec 2022

Actual

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023
Variance

Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Percent of
Budget 

Supplies
5202     Equipment                     500.00 170.00 170.00 330.00 34.00%
5299     Miscellaneous Supplies        1,000.00 42.50 42.50 957.50 4.25%
5201     Office Supplies               2,000.00 0.00 336.22 1,663.78 16.81%
5207     Postage                       400.00 0.00 0.00 400.00 0.00%

Total Supplies $3,900.00 $212.50 $548.72 $3,351.28
City Secretary Totals $113,017.63 $10,512.91 $27,299.70 $85,717.93

Court
Contract Labor

5108     Legal Expenses                5,000.00 19.50 2,101.20 2,898.80 42.02%
5106     Municipal Judge               2,400.00 0.00 1,050.00 1,350.00 43.75%

Total Contract Labor $7,400.00 $19.50 $3,151.20 $4,248.80
Salaries & Payroll

5007     FICA - Payroll Taxes          3,842.75 0.00 0.00 3,842.75 0.00%
5006     Health Insurance              10,740.96 2,358.84 2,358.84 8,382.12 21.96%
5004     Longevity Pay                 64.00 0.00 100.00 (36.00) 156.25%
5012     LTD, STD and Life             561.70 0.00 0.00 561.70 0.00%
5003     Overtime                      5,000.00 181.15 205.79 4,794.21 4.12%
5001     Salaries                      50,232.00 5,213.35 12,978.08 37,253.92 25.84%
5005     TMRS                          3,204.80 606.84 1,483.10 1,721.70 46.28%
5008     Worker's Comp                 320.00 0.00 3.88 316.12 1.21%

Total Salaries & Payroll $73,966.21 $8,360.18 $17,129.69 $56,836.52
Services

5315     Electric / Trash              2,000.00 120.72 340.44 1,659.56 17.02%
5320     Equipment Rental              2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00%
5335     Internet/Telephone            1,000.00 201.48 268.64 731.36 26.86%
5355     Miscellaneous Expense         10,000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00%
5325     Municipal Judge Training      350.00 0.00 0.00 350.00 0.00%
5350     Professional Services         1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00%
5322     Training/ Dues/ Memberships  2,450.00 0.00 1,970.50 479.50 80.43%

Total Services $18,800.00 $322.20 $2,579.58 $16,220.42
Supplies

5202     Equipment                     500.00 170.00 170.00 330.00 34.00%
5299     Miscellaneous Supplies        500.00 42.50 42.50 457.50 8.50%
5201     Office Supplies               1,500.00 22.99 247.98 1,252.02 16.53%
5207     Postage                       500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00%

1/13/2023 GENERAL FUND Page 4 of 9
2:58 PM Statement of Revenue and Expenditures



Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Current Period
Dec 2022
Dec 2022

Actual

Year-To-Date
Oct 2022
Dec 2022

Actual

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023
Variance

Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Percent of
Budget 

5222     Signs                         500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00%
Total Supplies $3,500.00 $235.49 $460.48 $3,039.52

Court Totals $103,666.21 $8,937.37 $23,320.95 $80,345.26
Health/Code Enforcement

Contract Labor
5112     Abatement                     15,000.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00%
5104     Animal Control                2,000.00 175.00 225.00 1,775.00 11.25%
5108     Legal Expenses                3,000.00 891.00 1,668.00 1,332.00 55.60%
5103     Septic Inspector              5,500.00 0.00 0.00 5,500.00 0.00%

Total Contract Labor $25,500.00 $1,066.00 $1,893.00 $23,607.00
Services

5390     Cleanup Days                  2,475.00 0.00 138.00 2,337.00 5.58%
5320     Equipment Rental              1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00%
5310     Software                      1,400.00 0.00 0.00 1,400.00 0.00%
5322     Training/ Dues/ Memberships  1,760.00 0.00 0.00 1,760.00 0.00%

Total Services $6,635.00 $0.00 $138.00 $6,497.00
Supplies

5299     Miscellaneous Supplies        0.00 0.00 106.95 (106.95) 0.00%
5222     Signs                         0.00 0.00 121.98 (121.98) 0.00%

Total Supplies $0.00 $0.00 $228.93 ($228.93)
Health/Code Enforcement Totals $32,135.00 $1,066.00 $2,259.93 $29,875.07

Parks & Recreation
Services

5385     Building Repairs              500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00%
5320     Equipment Rental              4,000.00 0.00 0.00 4,000.00 0.00%
5355     Miscellaneous Expense         4,000.00 0.00 136.91 3,863.09 3.42%
5304     Special Events                10,500.00 1,322.25 5,014.56 5,485.44 47.76%

Total Services $19,000.00 $1,322.25 $5,151.47 $13,848.53
Supplies

5202     Equipment                     1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00%
5299     Miscellaneous Supplies        500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00%
5201     Office Supplies               500.00 166.97 166.97 333.03 33.39%

Total Supplies $2,000.00 $166.97 $166.97 $1,833.03
Parks & Recreation Totals $21,000.00 $1,489.22 $5,318.44 $15,681.56

1/13/2023 GENERAL FUND Page 5 of 9
2:58 PM Statement of Revenue and Expenditures



Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Current Period
Dec 2022
Dec 2022

Actual

Year-To-Date
Oct 2022
Dec 2022

Actual

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023
Variance

Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Percent of
Budget 

Planning & Development
City Projects

5655     CDBG                          0.00 87.50 87.50 (87.50) 0.00%
Total City Projects $0.00 $87.50 $87.50 ($87.50)

Contract Labor
5105     Building Inspector            60,000.00 4,700.00 13,100.00 46,900.00 21.83%
5109     City Engineer                 25,000.00 7,416.22 9,873.44 15,126.56 39.49%
5110     City Planner                  40,000.00 6,743.18 10,810.06 29,189.94 27.03%
5108     Legal Expenses                5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00%

Total Contract Labor $130,000.00 $18,859.40 $33,783.50 $96,216.50
Services

5350     Professional Services         15,700.00 0.00 0.00 15,700.00 0.00%
5310     Software                      700.00 0.00 0.00 700.00 0.00%

Total Services $16,400.00 $0.00 $0.00 $16,400.00
Supplies

5201     Office Supplies               1,500.00 0.00 466.84 1,033.16 31.12%
Total Supplies $1,500.00 $0.00 $466.84 $1,033.16

Planning & Development Totals $147,900.00 $18,946.90 $34,337.84 $113,562.16
Public Safety

Capital Outlay
6030     Buildings - Capital           17,270.00 3,748.92 14,111.13 3,158.87 81.71%
6060     Buildings - Extractor         10,450.00 0.00 0.00 10,450.00 0.00%

Total Capital Outlay $27,720.00 $3,748.92 $14,111.13 $13,608.87
City Projects

5645     EMS Buildout                  0.00 0.00 100.66 (100.66) 0.00%
Total City Projects $0.00 $0.00 $100.66 ($100.66)

Contract Labor
5107     Contract Deputies             44,000.00 1,367.87 4,738.50 39,261.50 10.77%
5101     Contract Labor                37,400.00 2,950.00 9,350.00 28,050.00 25.00%

Total Contract Labor $81,400.00 $4,317.87 $14,088.50 $67,311.50
Services

5385     Building Repairs              0.00 0.00 959.97 (959.97) 0.00%
5322     Training/ Dues/ Memberships  2,200.00 0.00 178.00 2,022.00 8.09%

Total Services $2,200.00 $0.00 $1,137.97 $1,062.03

1/13/2023 GENERAL FUND Page 6 of 9
2:58 PM Statement of Revenue and Expenditures



Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Current Period
Dec 2022
Dec 2022

Actual

Year-To-Date
Oct 2022
Dec 2022

Actual

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023
Variance

Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Percent of
Budget 

Supplies
5202     Equipment                     0.00 0.00 200.95 (200.95) 0.00%

Total Supplies $0.00 $0.00 $200.95 ($200.95)
Public Safety Totals $111,320.00 $8,066.79 $29,639.21 $81,680.79

Public Works
Capital Outlay

6030     Buildings - Capital           35,000.00 0.00 0.00 35,000.00 0.00%
6020     Equipment - Capital           92,000.00 0.00 0.00 92,000.00 0.00%
6010     Vehicles - Capital            65,000.00 0.00 0.00 65,000.00 0.00%

Total Capital Outlay $192,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $192,000.00
City Projects

5655     CDBG                          0.00 7,500.00 9,483.38 (9,483.38) 0.00%
5635     CR 4717                       0.00 22,624.90 22,624.90 (22,624.90) 0.00%
5630     TDLR                          10,300.00 0.00 10,638.83 (338.83) 103.29%

Total City Projects $10,300.00 $30,124.90 $42,747.11 ($32,447.11)
Contract Labor

5105     Building Inspector            750.00 0.00 0.00 750.00 0.00%
5101     Contract Labor                15,000.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00%
5102     Public Infrastructure         5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00%

Total Contract Labor $20,750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $20,750.00
Salaries & Payroll

5007     FICA - Payroll Taxes          8,103.19 0.00 0.00 8,103.19 0.00%
5006     Health Insurance              21,481.92 2,358.86 4,201.44 17,280.48 19.56%
5004     Longevity Pay                 64.00 0.00 136.00 (72.00) 212.50%
5012     LTD, STD and Life             1,890.67 0.00 0.00 1,890.67 0.00%
5003     Overtime                      5,000.00 70.96 1,657.58 3,342.42 33.15%
5001     Salaries                      105,924.00 10,669.06 26,974.00 78,950.00 25.47%
5005     TMRS                          6,757.95 818.33 2,284.72 4,473.23 33.81%
5010     Unemployment                  3,177.72 0.00 0.00 3,177.72 0.00%
5008     Worker's Comp                 640.00 0.00 3.89 636.11 0.61%

Total Salaries & Payroll $153,039.45 $13,917.21 $35,257.63 $117,781.82
Services

5385     Building Repairs              15,000.00 141.74 477.50 14,522.50 3.18%
5315     Electric / Trash              12,000.00 706.19 2,309.32 9,690.68 19.24%
5320     Equipment Rental              5,000.00 0.00 1,497.28 3,502.72 29.95%

1/13/2023 GENERAL FUND Page 7 of 9
2:58 PM Statement of Revenue and Expenditures



Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Current Period
Dec 2022
Dec 2022

Actual

Year-To-Date
Oct 2022
Dec 2022

Actual

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023
Variance

Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Percent of
Budget 

5301     Fuel                          8,000.00 942.82 2,471.31 5,528.69 30.89%
5335     Internet/Telephone            1,030.00 0.00 0.00 1,030.00 0.00%
5355     Miscellaneous Expense         1,500.00 8.90 4.49 1,495.51 0.30%
5395     Road Maintenance              50,000.00 653.50 3,217.44 46,782.56 6.43%
5345     Street Lights                 11,940.00 471.09 1,436.61 10,503.39 12.03%
5303     Tolls                         50.00 0.00 0.00 50.00 0.00%
5302     Tractor/ Truck Repairs        8,000.00 239.55 802.48 7,197.52 10.03%
5322     Training/ Dues/ Memberships  4,410.00 0.00 190.00 4,220.00 4.31%

Total Services $116,930.00 $3,163.79 $12,406.43 $104,523.57
Supplies

5202     Equipment                     7,500.00 0.00 1,661.64 5,838.36 22.16%
5299     Miscellaneous Supplies        2,000.00 28.72 70.96 1,929.04 3.55%
5201     Office Supplies               3,000.00 19.97 59.97 2,940.03 2.00%
5207     Postage                       500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00%
5222     Signs                         8,000.00 2.48 13.24 7,986.76 0.17%
5203     Uniforms                      3,500.00 0.00 20.98 3,479.02 0.60%

Total Supplies $24,500.00 $51.17 $1,826.79 $22,673.21
Public Works Totals $517,519.45 $47,257.07 $92,237.96 $425,281.49

Revenues
City Projects

5650     LED Lights                    0.00 (3,014.59) (3,014.59) 3,014.59 0.00%
Total City Projects $0.00 ($3,014.59) ($3,014.59) $3,014.59

Services
5322     Training/ Dues/ Memberships  0.00 0.00 (40.70) 40.70 0.00%

Total Services $0.00 $0.00 ($40.70) $40.70
Revenues Totals $0.00 ($3,014.59) ($3,055.29) $3,055.29
Total  Expenses $1,517,048.36 $156,980.85 $352,912.70 $1,164,135.66

Total  Revenue Less Expenditures $264,341.69 $111,378.84 $103,970.60  

Transfers Out
Parks & Recreation

Transfer Expense
9100     Transfers Out                 142,973.00 0.00 0.00 142,973.00 0.00%

Total Transfer Expense $142,973.00 $0.00 $0.00 $142,973.00
Parks & Recreation Totals $142,973.00 $0.00 $0.00 $142,973.00

1/13/2023 GENERAL FUND Page 8 of 9
2:58 PM Statement of Revenue and Expenditures



Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Current Period
Dec 2022
Dec 2022

Actual

Year-To-Date
Oct 2022
Dec 2022

Actual

Annual Budget
Oct 2022
Sep 2023
Variance

Oct 2022
Sep 2023

Percent of
Budget 

Public Works
Transfer Expense

9100     Transfers Out                 85,000.00 0.00 0.00 85,000.00 0.00%
Total Transfer Expense $85,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $85,000.00

Public Works Totals $85,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $85,000.00
Total  Transfers Out $227,973.00 $0.00 $0.00 $227,973.00

Total  Net Change in Fund Balance $36,368.69 $111,378.84 $103,970.60  

Fund Balances
Beginning Fund Balance 0.00 1,864,070.83 1,871,479.07  0.00%
Net Change in Fund Balance 36,368.69 111,378.84 103,970.60  0.00%
Ending Fund Balance 0.00 1,975,449.67 1,975,449.67  0.00%

1/13/2023 GENERAL FUND Page 9 of 9
2:58 PM Statement of Revenue and Expenditures



First Quarter 2022-2023 Investment Report 

Month  Beginning Balance  Contributions  Ending Balance Interest  Withdrawals 
October        
2022 TX Class Account Prime $1,188,029.41  $0.00  $1,191,291.39  $3,261.98  $0.00  

 Transportation Impact Fee $132,363.12  $0.00  $132,726.56  $363.44  $0.00  

 JF Judicial Fund $16.54  $0.00  $16.55  $0.01  $0.00  

 Municipal Court Building Fund $5,310.75  $0.00  $5,325.33  $14.58  $0.00  

 Truancy P&D Fund $1,386.50  $0.00  $1,390.30  $3.80  $0.00  

 Municipal Court Tech Fund $6,659.37  $0.00  $6,677.68  $18.31  $0.00  

 CIP Fund $120,199.07  $0.00  $120,529.11  $330.04  $0.00  

 Total $1,453,964.76  $0.00  $1,457,956.92  $3,992.16  $0.00  
November        
2022 TX Class Account Prime $1,191,291.39  $154,000.00  $1,349,438.15  $4,146.76  $0.00  

 Transportation Impact Fee $132,726.56  $0.00  $133,147.67  $421.11  $0.00  

 JF Judicial Fund $16.55  $0.00  $16.58  $0.03  $0.00  

 Municipal Court Building Fund $5,325.33  $0.00  $5,342.23  $16.90  $0.00  

 Truancy P&D Fund $1,390.30  $0.00  $1,394.71  $4.41  $0.00  

 Municipal Court Tech Fund $6,677.68  $0.00  $6,698.86  $21.18  $0.00  

 CIP Fund $120,529.11  $0.00  $120,911.53  $382.42  $0.00  

 Total $1,457,956.92  $154,000.00  $1,616,949.73  $4,992.81  $0.00  
December       
2022 TX Class Account Prime $1,349,438.15  $0.00  $1,354,394.32  $4,956.17  $0.00  

 Transportation Impact Fee $133,147.67  $16,972.74  $150,615.72  $4,985.31  $0.00  

 JF Judicial Fund $16.58  $0.90  $17.52  $0.04  $0.00  

 Municipal Court Building Fund $5,342.23  $44.10  $5,405.95  $19.62  $0.00  

 Truancy P&D Fund $1,394.71  $45.00  $1,444.85  $5.14  $0.00  

 Municipal Court Tech Fund $6,698.86  $36.00  $6,759.47  $24.61  $0.00  

 CIP Fund $120,911.53  $0.00  $121,355.61  $444.08  $0.00  

 Total $1,616,949.73  $17,098.74  $1,639,993.44  $5,944.97  $0.00  
 



 
AGENDA ITEM: 7A 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA MEMO 

Prepared By: John Cabrales Jr, City Administrator                                                             January 16, 2023 

Wise County Project Agreement for Public Improvements 
 
DESCRIPTION: 
 
Receive, consider, and act on a Resolution to approve a Project Agreement with Wise County, Texas 
for improvements to Graham Road, Wilson Court, Creasser Lane, Stewart Street and the City’s Park 
parking lot. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
The City has been in communication with Wise County Commissioner Precinct 1, Biff Hayes, on the 
reconstruction of certain roads in the Chisholm Hills subdivision, the construction of the parking lot at 
the City Park, and the maintenance of an unimproved section of Graham Road. Commissioner Hayes 
is supportive of the City’s request and has stated he would bring forward a Project Agreement to 
Wise County Commissioners Court, if approved by the City Council. 
 
The scope of the Project Agreement (#1015) consists of the spreading of gravel on the unimproved 
section of Graham Road, approximately 1,332 linear feet long and 18 - 20 feet wide. The City will be 
supplying the gravel and the County will spread the gravel. This is needed to repair some erosion and 
other damage to the road until a permanent solution is decided for this section of the road. 
 
The scope also includes the grinding of the old asphalt, applying base material, and laying asphalt to 
Wilson Court, Creasser Lane, a portion of Stewart Street by the new City Park, and the parking lot of 
the new park. On September 6, 2022, the City Council awarded a contract to JR West Texas 
Construction in the amount of $426,991.50, for the drainage improvements to Wilson Court and 
Creasser Lane. This is part of a Texas Department of Agriculture (TDA), Texas Community 
Development Block Grant (TxCDBG) that was awarded to the City for the improvements to these two 
roads. It is anticipated that the drainage improvements will be completed by the spring so that the 
road will be ready for reconstruction by the County in early summer. Staff is also looking into the cost 
to reconstruct approximately 150 feet of Stewart Street that leads into the parking lot for the new 
city park. Except for the two handicap parking pads, the parking lot is not covered as part of the park 
construction project so staff is looking into the cost of getting the parking lot paved since the County 
will have their equipment at this location. 
 



If the Project Agreement is approved by the City Council, then Commissioner Hayes will take the 
agreement before the Wise County Commissioners Court with his recommendation for approval. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the resolution. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 
 
The City will be responsible for all material costs for these projects. We currently have funds in the 
Public Works Street Maintenance budget, and we have funds available in the Fund Balance that can 
be transferred to the Capital Improvements Project Special Revenue Fund. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTIONS: 
 
I move to Approve/Deny on a Resolution to approve a Project Agreement with Wise County, Texas 
for improvements to Graham Road, Wilson Court, Creasser Lane, Stewart Street and the City’s Park 
parking lot. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

1. Wise County Project Agreement #1015 
2. Resolution 202301-03-110 



APPROVAL OF PROJECT AGREEMENT 
 

 

DATE: 12/2 0/2022  PROJECT AGREEMENT NUMBER: 1015 
 

Approval of a Project Agreement between Wise County, Texas ("the County") and the City of New 
Fairview ("Governmental Entity") for Graham Rd, Chisholm Hills subdivision, Wilson Ct, Creasser 
Ln, Stewart Street and the City Park Parking lot Public Improvement Project, (hereinafter the 
"Project") Located entirely within the Governmental Entity and Wise County Precinct No 1. 

 

BACKGROUND 

WHEREAS, the Project is solely for the full benefit of the Public, said County and 

Governmental Entity, hereby wish to enter into a Project Agreement in which the County agrees to 

provide maintenance and/or perform surface road repairs, or other public improvements on the 

following roads or surface area as described: spread gravel on Graham Rd, grind old streets, apply 

base and lay asphalt.  

It is expressly agreed by the parties that the Project is to be performed entirely within the 

Municipal/District limits of the Governmental Entity located within Wise County Precinct No 1 .  

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 

The County agrees to provide all necessary labor and equipment to perform the Project as 

described above, equal to the maximum of $15,000.00 per Project. A disclosure of the in-kind cost 

associated with Project is reflected on "Exhibit A" attached hereto and made a part hereof. Upon 

completion of the approved P roject "Exhibit A" shall be completed and submitted to County Auditor 

for final filing. 

LEGAL INFORMATION 

Wise County is authorized to enter into the Agreement under Texas Government Code Chapter 

791.014. Approval Requirement for Counties, and conjunctively the approval must: 1) be given in a 

document other than the interlocal contract; 2) describe the type of project to be undertaken; 3) 

identify the Project's location. 4) The Project Agreement must receive prior approval by the 

governing body of the Governmental Entity and be submitted to the County for consideration. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

The Governmental Entity will pay for all materials directly to vendors from its current revenues. 
 

 
County Judge Governmental Entity 
 

Date Print 

 
 

APPROVED BY COMMISSIONERS COURT 

THIS   DAY OF  ,2023 

Date 



CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW 

DATE 12/20/2022 

PROJECT AGREEMENT# 1015 

 
The Order: 

Pursuant to existing lnterlocal Agreement and in accordance with Government Code Section 791, 

action taken on Project Number 1015 between Wise County and the City of New Fairview-• Graham Rd, 

Chisholm Hills subdivision, Wilson Ct, Creasser Ln, Stewart St and the City Park parking lot 

said project status is ordered as follows: spread gravel, grind streets, apply base and lay asphalt 

 
Motion by   Seconded by  

 

 
Mayor 

 
 

Yes 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
Mayor ProTern Yes 

 Print  Abstain     Print  Abstain    

 
Sign 

No 

Absent 

   No 

Sign Absent 

   

 

 
 

Council Place 1 

 
 

Yes 

 

 
 

   

 

 

 
Council Place 2 Yes 

 
 

   

Print Abstain  
 

Print Abstain  

 No  
 

No  

Sign Absent  
 

Sign Absent  

 

 
Council Place 3 

 
 

Yes 

 
 

 
 

 

 
Council Place 4 Yes 

 

Print Abstain  
 

Print Abstain  
 No  

 

No  

Sign Absent  
 

Sign Absent  

 

 
Council Place 5 

 
 

Yes 

 
 

 
 

 

 
Council Place 6 Yes 

 

Print Abstain  
 

Print Abstain  

 No  
 

No  

Sign Absent  
 

Sign Absent  

   

 
Motion Carried 

 
 
 

 

 

 
Other Action: Pulled from Consent 

 
   

 
No Action   

 
Postponed   _ Denied   

 

 
BY ORDER OF THE CITY COUNCIL: 

 

 Title  

Sign 

 Print  

 

 Date  



 
RESOLUTION  
202301-03-110 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS, APPROVING A PROJECT 
AGREEMENT WITH WISE COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR A PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
FOR GRAHAM ROAD, WILSON COURT, CREASSER LANE, STEWART STREET, AND THE 
CITY PARK PARKING LOT. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of New Fairview, Texas is a Type A general-law municipality located in 
Wise and Denton Counties, created in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 6 of the Texas Local 
Government Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of New Fairview, Texas seeks to enter into a Public Improvement 

Agreement with Wise County, Texas for surface road repairs, grinding old streets, applying base, laying 
asphalt, or making other public improvements to Graham Road, Wilson Court, Creasser Lane, Stewart 
Street and the City Park parking lot; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of New Fairview, Texas is authorized to enter into this Agreement with Wise 

County under Chapter 791 of the Texas Local Government Code; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Public Improvement Agreement provides that the County will furnish the labor 
and equipment to perform the Project, and the City will pay for all the materials directly to the vendors 
from current revenues, as required by Section 791.011 (d), Texas Local Government Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds it is in the public interest to complete this Public Improvement 

Project within the City.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS, THAT: 

 
SECTION 1. The City of New Fairview, Texas approves entering into this Project Agreement 

(#1015) with Wise County, Texas for the above-mentioned Public Improvement Project. 
 
SECTION 2. The City Administrator is hereby authorized to execute this Project Agreement and 

approve all material expenses associated with these public improvement projects. 
 

SECTION 3. This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon approval.  
 

PRESENTED AND PASSED on the 16th day of January 2023, at a Regular meeting of the New Fairview 
City Council.  
 
APPROVED:             ATTESTED: 
 
 
_________________________________        __________________________________ 
 John Taylor, Mayor            Brooke Boller, City Secretary    



 
AGENDA ITEM: 7B 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA MEMO 

Prepared By: John Cabrales Jr, City Administrator                                                             January 16, 2023 

Costs for the Improvement of County Road 4717 
 
DESCRIPTION: 
 
Receive, consider, and act on a Resolution amending Resolution 202207-02-206 and authorizing an 
increase to the Not-to-Exceed cost for the improvement of County Road 4717. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
On June 21, 2021, the council passed a resolution (202106-03-175) authorizing the City Administrator 
to enter into an Interlocal Agreement (ILA) with Wise County for the improvement of approximately 
2.2 miles of County Road 4717. That project was authorized for a not-to-exceed cost of $100,000. The 
ILA states that the County will provide the labor and equipment to perform the project, and the City 
will pay for all the materials directly to the vendors. This road required some drainage work so 
approximately $20,800 was spent on drainage culverts.  
 
The City had spent $68,286 for materials on this Improvement Project, when it was notified by Wise 
County that an additional amount of $48,200 for the layer of chip seal was needed. They also 
recommended an overlay of the road for an estimated cost of $32,000. The project not only needed 
the chip seal, but the proposed cost for the materials would exceed the authorized amount for this 
project. On July 18, 2022, the Council approved a Resolution (202207-02-206), increasing the not-to-
exceed amount for this project from $100,000.00 to $123,000.00. The project moved forward, and 
the road was completed by the County in August 2022. 
 
Thereafter, the City continued to receive vendor invoices for the completed Improvement Project. In 
December 2022, City staff met with County staff to discuss and review these invoices from Martin 
Marietta Materials, and Rooker Asphalt. The County staff informed us that they had miscalculated the 
amount of materials needed, specifically the half-inch rock chip seal needed was more than 400 tons, 
rather than the 200 tons estimated by Wise County. Also, the County’s price per gallon for the MC-30 
tack oil had gone up from $3.20 per gallon to over $4.00 per gallon, because the County’s new 
contract price went into effect just prior to the project. There was also a $1,500 transportation fee 
that we were charged because a full truck load was not needed for this project. 
 
Staff is requesting an increase for this project of the not-to-exceed amount from $123,000 to 
$128,247.30 for the improvement of County Road 4717. This will cover the overage from the County's 



miscalculations, and we can close out this project. We do have funds to cover the $5,247.30 overage 
in the Public Works Road Maintenance budget. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the resolution. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 
 

County Road 4717 Expenses 

Vendor Amount 

Texas Erosion Supply  $1,791.45 

Texas Erosion Supply  $8.55 

Texas Erosion Supply  $3,578.42 

Burnco $752.91 

Burnco $5,128.29 

Burnco $5,259.70 

Burnco $4,692.76 

Burnco $3,568.00 

Burnco $3,921.93 

Burnco $5,478.16 

Burnco $18,685.57 

Lowery Metals $15,420.84 

Martin Marietta Materials $7,891.80 

Rooker Asphalt $14,856.53 

Rooker Asphalt $14,587.49 

Martin Marietta Materials $5,274.90 

Rooker Asphalt $17,350.00 

TOTAL $128,247.30 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTIONS: 
 
I move to Approve/Deny a Resolution amending Resolution 202207-02-206 by increasing the not-to-
exceed amount from $123,000 to $128,247.30 for the improvement of County Road 4717. 



 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

1. Resolution 202207-02-206 
2. Wise County Chip Seal Estimate 
3. Resolution 202301-04-111 







 
RESOLUTION  
202301-04-111 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS. AMENDING RESOLUTION  
202207-02-206 AND 202106-03-175, BY AUTHORIZING AN INCREASE NOT TO EXCEED 
ALLOWANCE FOR THE IMPROVEMENT TO COUNTY ROAD 4717  
 

WHEREAS, On June 21, 2021, the City Council passed a Resolution (202106-03-175) authorizing 
the City Administrator to enter into an Interlocal Agreement (ILA) with Wise County for the improvement 
of approximately 2.2 miles of County Road 4717 (the “Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the ILA provides that the County will furnish the labor and equipment to perform 

the Project, and the City will pay for all the materials directly to the vendors; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Council’s Resolution authorized this road improvement project for a Not-to-

Exceed cost of $100,000.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, On July 18, 2022, the City Council passed a Resolution (202207-02-206) increasing 

the not-to-exceed amount for this project from $100,000.00 to $123,000.00, due to shortages in the supply 
chain resulting in cost increase for materials; and 

 
WHEREAS, due to the County’s miscalculation of the underlying estimated amount of materials 

needed for the project, the total amount needed to complete this road project will exceed the monetary 
allowance previously approved by the Council; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds it is in the public interest to complete the road project within 

the City.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
That the City Council’s July 18, 2022, Resolution No. 202207-02-206, and June 21, 2021, Resolution No. 
202106-03-175 are hereby amended by increasing the not-to-exceed amount from $123,000.00 to 
$128,247.30. 
 

PRESENTED AND PASSED on the 16th day of January, 2023, at a Regular meeting of the New Fairview 
City Council.  
 
 
 
APPROVED:             ATTESTED: 
 
 
_________________________________        __________________________________ 
 John Taylor, Mayor            Brooke Boller, City Secretary   
           
 



AGENDA ITEM: 7C 
  

 
 

                          CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA MEMO 

Prepared By: John Cabrales Jr., City Administrator                                                             January 16, 2023 

City Purchasing Policy 
 
DESCRIPTION: 
 
Receive, consider, and act on an Ordinance repealing Ordinance 2020-13-208, and a Resolution 
adopting the City of New Fairview Purchasing Policy. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
The City Council adopted a Procurement Policy for the City on May 18, 2020 (Ordinance 2020-
13-208). The purpose of the Procurement Policy is to provide the City with the requisite 
parameters for purchasing goods and services under applicable state statutes. It is the policy of 
the City to conduct procurement functions efficiently, effectively, and in full compliance with all 
federal and state laws and administration policy and procedures. The City Council’s authority to 
contract for all goods and services and make all sales is delegated to the City Administrator as 
set forth in this Procurement Policy. 
 
Unfortunately, the existing Policy contains conflicting language and contains positions within it 
that do not exist for the City. For example, Under Section 2, “Delegated Authority”, the City 
Administrator is authorized to procure and authorize items budgeted and less than $50,000. 
However, in Section 9, “Contracts”, all non-standard contracts greater than $10,000 must be 
reviewed not only by the City Attorney but City Council approval. This required the $14,040 
office printer lease contract, to be paid out over 60 months ($2,808 annually), and to be 
brought to a City Council meeting. This can lead to inefficient use of staff time in preparing 
council agenda items for low dollar purchases that should be done administratively, when 
approved in the budget.  
 
Staff obtained the procurement policies from some neighboring cities to compare to our 
existing policy. Staff worked with the City Attorney in preparing a draft Purchasing Policy 
(attached) that is simpler and more readily meets the city’s needs. 
 
A Work Session discussion was held at the January 3, 2023, council meeting regarding the City 
Procurement Policy and staff was directed to bring back a Resolution to adopt the draft 
Purchasing Policy. Because the existing Procurement Policy was adopted by Ordinance, Council 



must first repeal Ordinance 2020-13-208. These types of policies are best adopted by 
resolution, rather than by ordinance. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 
 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTIONS: 
 
I move to Approve/Deny an Ordinance repealing Ordinance 2020-13-208, and a Resolution 
adopting the City of New Fairview Purchasing Policy. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

1. Ordinance 2020-13-208 
2. Repealing Ordinance 202301-01-102 
3. Resolution 202301-05-112 
4. Exhibit A - Purchasing Policy 





 

 

 

City of New Fairview, Texas 
Ordinance No. 202301-01-102 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NEW FIARVIEW, TEXAS, REPEALING 
ORDINANCE NO. 2020-13-208; PROVIDING FOR REPEALING; AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS ORDINANCE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of New Fairview, Texas ("City") desires for all of its citizens to 

have confidence in the integrity, transparency and efficiency of the City staff and officials in 
contracting for governmental goods and services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of New Fairview ("City Council") previously 

adopted Ordinance No. 2020-13-208 to establish a Procurement Policy; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has investigated and determined that t h e  P r o c u r e m e n t  
P o l i c y  a d o p t e d  b y  Ordinance No. 2 0 2 0 -13-208 could benefit from revision; and 

 
WHEREAS, s i n c e  the City Council enacted Ordinance No. 2020-13-208, they 

investigated and determined that it would prefer to modify, amend and otherwise replace the 
existing Procurement Policy via resolution, rather than by ordinance. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS: 
 

SECTION 1: Findings Incorporated. The findings set forth above are incorporated into 
the body of this Ordinance as if fully set forth herein. 

 

SECTION 2: Ordinance No. 2020-13-208 Repealed. C i t y  o f  N e w  F a i r v i e w  
Ordinance No. 2020-13-208 is hereby repealed in its entirety. The effective date of the repeal of 
Ordinance No. 00-01-11 discussed in this Section is immediate and effective on the approval of 
this repealing ordinance. Such repeal shall not adversely affect any previous procurement, or impair any 
contract transacted or entered into before the effective date of this Ordinance, except as it may pertain the 
manner of its subsequent renewal, amendment, revision or extension. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City of NEW FAIRVIEW, Texas, on this the 16th 
day of January 2023 

 
 

APPROVED:      ATTESTED: 
    
 
  _______________________    _____________________________ 
  JOHN R. TAYLOR     BROOKE BOLLER 
  Mayor       City Secretary 



 
RESOLUTION  
202301-05-112 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS, APPROVING A CITY 
PURCHASING POLICY. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of New Fairview, Texas is a Type A general-law municipality located in 
Wise and Denton Counties, created in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 6 of the Texas Local 
Government Code and operating pursuant to the enabling legislation of the State of Texas; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to be in compliance with Texas State Laws for purchasing goods and 

services and receive the best value for taxpayers; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to implement a Purchasing Policy containing guidelines for 

purchase authorization and expenditures; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is necessary and proper for good governance and order 

of the organization to establish a Purchasing Policy for the City. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
SECTION 1. The Purchasing Policy of the City of New Fairview, attached hereto as “Exhibit A”, 

is hereby adopted to help maintain financial disciplines, consistency, and stability. 
 
SECTION 2. This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon passage and approval. 
  

 
PRESENTED AND PASSED on the 16th day of January 2023, at a Regular meeting of the New Fairview 
City Council.  
 
 
APPROVED:             ATTESTED: 
 
 
_________________________________        __________________________________ 
 John Taylor, Mayor            Brooke Boller, City Secretary    



EXHIBIT - A 

CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW 
PURCHASING POLICY 

Adopted by Resolution 202301-05-112, on January 16, 2023 



Page 2 of 3  

1. PURPOSE 
 

a. The purpose of this Policy shall be to establish guidelines for procurement of 
supplies, materials and services for the City of New Fairview (the City). 

 
b. This Policy shall also establish the internal control procedures that all vendors and 

City personnel are to follow. Internal control is required to assist in the prevention of 
any unauthorized purchases by the City, and any evidence of collusion by vendors. 

 
c. This Policy shall further establish guidelines to provide the citizens and taxpayers of 

the City with assurance that the best use of the available resources of the City are 
being realized. Further, this Policy is intended to promote competition among bidders 
and vendors interested in providing products or services to the City. 

 
d. The statutory authority for this Policy shall be the Local Government Code, Section 

252, subsequent amendments, and other Texas state statutes and United States Code 
of Federal Regulation 2 CFR, Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards , as may be required for 
certain federally funded grants. 

 
 

2. THE PURCHASING FUNCTION 
 

a. The basic function of a purchasing system is to support and enhance the delivery of 
City services, encouraging competitive and open procurement. 

 
b. The optimum performance of this function requires that the purchasing system 

continually provide City departments with the proper quality as well as quantity of 
requested goods and services, within an acceptable time frame, at the lowest cost 
or best value to the City. 

 
 

3. PURCHASING POLICY 
 

The following Purchasing Policy is hereby established. 
 

a. Purchases not subject to competitive bidding: 
Purchases less than $50,000 are not subject to the statutory competitive 
bid process (see below, Purchases subject to competitive bidding). 

 
i. Purchases less than $3,000 require approval by the City Administrator or 

City Department Director or designee. They do not require competitive 
price quotations or an authorized requisition and purchase order. 

 
1. Invoice payment requests less than $3,000 should be signed, coded 

(with a general ledger account number), and turned into the City 
Secretary for payment. 

2. If the vendor is not currently active with the City, provide them with a 
vendor packet to be completed and submitted to the Finance 



Page 3 of 3  

Department. Payment cannot be remitted until vendor packet is 
received.  

 
ii. Purchases $3,000 and above require: 

 
1. Compliance with the States Historically Underutilized Business 

(HUB) requirement and/ or, 
 

2. Three written quotes from vendors, 
 

3. Completed and authorized Requisition Form or approved, written 
request from a City Department. 

 
4. If the successful vendor is not currently active with the City, provide 

them with a vendor packet to be completed and submitted to the Finance 
Department. 

 
5. The City Secretary will issue a Purchase Order after receiving: 

a. An electronic Purchase Order request authorized by the 
Department Director, 

b. Supporting written quotes including compliance with the States 
HUB requirements, 

c. Vendor packet (if not a current vendor). 
 

iii. Requisitions for purchases of goods or services in excess of $10,000 also 
require City Administrator approval. If funds have not been specifically 
budgeted in the current budget year, then they must be expressly 
authorized and approved by separate action of the City Council. 

 
iv. Requisitions for purchases of goods or services in excess of $25,000 require 

City Council approval. 
 

b. Purchases subject to competitive bidding. 
 

i. Purchases in excess of $50,000 shall be competitively bid and awarded by 
the City Council. 

 
ii. Sequential or component purchases exceeding $50,000 during any fiscal year 

period shall be deemed must meet the competitive bidding requirements of 
this Policy. 

 
c. Procurement of Professional Services. Contracts for professional services shall 

comply with the Professional Services Procurement Act, Government Code, 
Section 2254. The following guidelines shall apply to procurement of professional 
services. 

 
i. Professional services may not be awarded on the basis of competitive bidding. 

 
ii. Professional services must be awarded on the basis of demonstrated 



Page 4 of 3  

competence and qualifications. 
 

iii. The City Administrator may authorize and approve professional services less 
than $25,000 during a fiscal year period, without specified City Council 
approval, provided available funds are budgeted therefore. 

 
iv. The City Council shall authorize any professional service contract which 

will exceed $25,000 during a fiscal year period, on the basis of the above 
criteria. 

 
d. Cooperative Purchasing. Whenever it is determined to be advantageous to the City, 

cooperative purchasing with other local governmental agencies may be used. 
Requester must provide contract number. Such cooperative agreements shall be 
approved by all governing bodies for each local agency participating in any 
purchasing cooperative. The provisions of the Local Government Code (Subchapter 
D, Sections 271.081 through 271.083) shall apply. 

 
e. Exceptions to Policy. Emergency procurements, professional services, purchases of 

land, items available from only one source, etc. are exceptions to the competitive 
bidding requirements for purchases and shall comply with Local Government Code, 
Section 252.022. 

 
f. Authorization and Approval of Change Orders. Authorization and approval of 

change orders shall follow the same dollar limitations and requirements as 
provided above in Section 3(a) and (b). The City Council hereby grants the City 
Administrator authority to execute any and all change orders which involve a 
decrease or an increase of up to $25,000 or 25% of the original contract, provided 
the total contract expenditures remain within the budgeted amount. 

 
g. Vendor Packets. Vendor packets are a crucial part of the accounts payable system. 

They allow for fraud prevention by providing vendor contact information that 
allows for the authentication of vendor file changes. All active vendors must have 
a complete vendor packet containing: the vendor management page, a signed W-9, 
and a completed conflict of interest disclosure questionnaire. Vendor Packets will 
be updated annually for all vendors. 

 
 

4. FEDERALLY FUNDED GRANT PROGRAMS 
 

a. To the extent that any federally funded grant program requires the same, the City 
agrees to adhere to 2 CFR, Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,  a copy of which may be 
found at https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-II/part-200 and 
which is incorporated for all purposes 

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-II/part-200


                                                                                                      AGENDA ITEM: 7D 
  

 
 
 

                          CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA MEMO 

Prepared By: John Cabrales Jr, City Administrator                                                           January 16, 2023 

Professional Service Agreement with MWH Group 
 
DESCRIPTION: 
 
Receive, consider, and act on a Resolution authorizing the City Administrator to execute a 
Professional Services Agreement with MHW Group, PC to conduct the annual audit for the fiscal 
year ending on September 30, 2021. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
On October 18, 2021, the Council approved a professional services agreement with William C 
Spore, PC and MWH Group, PC to conduct the annual audit for the fiscal year ending on 
September 30, 2021 (Resolution 202110-01-188). The agreement maintained that Mr. Spore 
would prepare the balance sheet schedules and would them provide them to MWH Group to 
conduct the audit.  
 
In prior years, the City Auditor was allowed to prepare and then audit the balance sheet 
schedules but changes to the governmental auditing standards require that if the auditor 
prepares the schedules and then audits them himself the auditor is required to submit his work 
papers to a third-party review prior to issuance of the audit report. Since Mr. Spore was a single 
member accounting firm, he recommended contracting with MWH Group to conduct the audit. 
The cost for preparing the balance sheet schedules for the FY 2021 annual audit is $500 for Mr. 
Spore since he had already been contracted by the City to do a deep dive audit of the fiscal 
year. The MHW Group will conduct the FY 2021 audit for $2,500. 
 
Unfortunately, the FY 2021 annual audit is still not completed. Staff has tried multiple times to 
make contact with Mr. Spore via telephone and email and have received no response back. 
Staff was able to make contact with Ms. Valerie Halverson, CPA, with the MWH Group and she 
informed us they had heard from Mr. Spore but were still waiting on the balance sheet 
schedules for our City. He was also overdue in getting balance sheet schedules to them for 
other cities he is working on as well. 
 



The City has tried numerous times to get in contact with Mr. Spore, but he is not replying. As a 
result, staff asked MWH Group to submit a proposal to conduct the annual audit for the fiscal 
year ending on September 30, 2021. They will perform all the functions and reviews needed to 
conduct this annual audit, and Mr. Spore will not have any role in the audit. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the resolution. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 
 
The MWH Group fee for this service will be at their standard hourly rates plus out-of-pocket 
costs (such as report reproduction, word processing, postage, travel, copies, telephone, etc.) 
except that they agree that their gross fee, including expenses, will be $7,500 - $11,500. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTIONS: 
 
I move to Approve/Deny the Resolution authorizing the City Administrator to execute a 
Professional Services Agreement with MHW Group, PC in final form as approved by the CIty 
Attorney, to conduct the annual audit for the fiscal year ending on September 30, 2021. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

1. MWH Group Engagement Letter 
2. Resolution 202301-06-113 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

January 11, 2023 

John Cabrales, Jr., City Administrator 
City of New Fairview 
999 Illinois Lane 
New Fairview, TX 76078 
  

 

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide City of New Fairview, Texas for the 
year ended September 30, 2021. We will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information, including the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of City of New Fairview, Texas as 
of and for the year ended September 30, 2021.  Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America provide for certain required supplementary information (RSI), such as management’s discussion and 
analysis (MD&A), to supplement City of New Fairview’s basic financial statements. Such information, although not 
a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to 
City of New Fairview’s RSI in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
These limited procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We will not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. The following RSI is required by U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles and will be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited:  

1) Management’s Discussion and Analysis. 

2) Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

3) Schedule of Changes in Pension Liability and Related Ratios 

4) Schedule of Pension Contributions 

5) Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 

Audit Objectives 

The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your financial statements are fairly presented, 
in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and to report on the fairness 
of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when considered in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole. Our audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States, and will include tests of the accounting records of City of New 
Fairview, Texas and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions. We will issue 
a written report upon completion of our audit of City of New Fairview, Texas’ financial statements. Our report will be 
addressed to the City Council of City of New Fairview, Texas. We cannot provide assurance that unmodified 
opinions will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinions or add 
emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraphs. If our opinions are other than unmodified, we will discuss the 
reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have 
not formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions or issue reports, or may withdraw from this engagement.  

We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the financial statements 
and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with 



City of New Fairview, Texas 
January 11, 2023 
 
Page 2 
 
 

 

which could have a material effect on the financial statements as required by Government Auditing Standards. The 
report on internal control and on compliance and other matters will include a paragraph that states (1) that the 
purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control and compliance, and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control on compliance, and (2) 
that the report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. The paragraph will also state that the report is not suitable 
for any other purpose.  If during our audit we become aware that City of New Fairview, Texas is subject to an audit 
requirement that is not encompassed in the terms of this engagement, we will communicate to management and 
those charged with governance that an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and 
the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards may not satisfy the relevant legal, 
regulatory, or contractual requirements. 

Audit Procedures—General  

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be examined and the 
areas to be tested. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial 
reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable 
to the government or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the government. Because the 
determination of waste and abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to perform 
specific procedures to detect waste or abuse in financial audits nor do they expect auditors to provide reasonable 
assurance of detecting waste or abuse. 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and 
because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, an unavoidable risk exists that some material 
misstatements may exist and not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards. In addition, an 
audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do 
not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, we will inform the appropriate level of 
management of any material errors, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that comes to our 
attention.  We will also inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or governmental 
regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential. Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the 
period covered by our audit and does not extend to later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors. 

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts, 
and may include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain 
other assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial 
institutions.   We will request written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may 
bill you for responding to this inquiry.  At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written representations 
from you about your responsibilities for the financial statements; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements; and other responsibilities required by generally accepted auditing standards. 

Audit Procedures—Internal Control  

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the government and its environment, including internal control, 
sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the nature, timing, 
and extent of further audit procedures.  Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain 
controls that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial 
statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance 
matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in 
scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be 
expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses. Accordingly, we will express no such opinion. However, during the audit, we will communicate to 



City of New Fairview, Texas 
January 11, 2023 
 
Page 3 
 
 

 

management and those charged with governance internal control related matters that are required to be 
communicated under AICPA professional standards and Government Auditing Standards.  

 

Audit Procedures—Compliance  

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, 
we will perform tests of City of New Fairview’s compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, regulations, 
contracts, agreements, and grants. However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide an opinion on overall 
compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant to Government 
Auditing Standards. 

Other Services  

We will also assist in preparing the financial statements and related notes of City of New Fairview’s in conformity 
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles based on information provided by you. These nonaudit services 
do not constitute an audit under Government Auditing Standards and such services will not be conducted in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards.  We will perform the services in accordance with applicable 
professional standards. The other services are limited to the financial statement services previously defined. We, 
in our sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any action that could 
be construed as assuming management responsibilities. 

Management Responsibilities  

Management is responsible for designing, implementing, establishing, and maintaining effective internal controls 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and for evaluating and monitoring ongoing activities to help ensure that appropriate 
goals and objectives are met; following laws and regulations; and ensuring that management and financial 
information is reliable and properly reported. Management is also responsible for implementing systems designed 
to achieve compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also responsible 
for the selection and application of accounting principles, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements and all accompanying information in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and 
for compliance with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements.  

Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to us and for the 
accuracy and completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all 
information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements, including identification of all related parties and all related-party relationships and transactions, (2) 
additional information that we may request for the purpose of the audit, and (3) unrestricted access to persons 
within the government from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence.  

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for confirming 
to us in the written representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during 
the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the 
aggregate, to the financial statements of each opinion unit taken as a whole. 

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and 
for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) management, (2) 
employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material effect 
on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud 
or suspected fraud affecting the government received in communications from employees, former employees, 
grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government 
complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants and for taking timely and appropriate 
steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, or contracts or grant agreements 
that we report.  

You are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information, which we have been engaged to report 
on, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. You agree to include our report on the 
supplementary information in any document that contains and indicates that we have reported on the supplementary 



City of New Fairview, Texas 
January 11, 2023 
 
Page 4 
 
 

 

information. You also agree to include the audited financial statements with any presentation of the supplementary 
information that includes our report thereon or make the audited financial statements readily available to users of 
the supplementary information no later than the date the supplementary information is issued with our report thereon. 
Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that (1) you are responsible for 
presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with GAAP; (2) you believe the supplementary 
information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with GAAP; (3) the methods of 
measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the 
reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations 
underlying the measurement or presentation of the supplementary information.  

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and 
recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report copies of previous financial 
audits, attestation engagements, performance audits or other studies related to the objectives discussed in the 
Audit Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address 
significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, 
or other studies. You are also responsible for providing management’s views on our current findings, conclusions, 
and recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for 
providing that information.  

You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements and related notes and any 
other nonaudit services we provide. You will be required to acknowledge in the management representation letter 
our assistance with preparation of the financial statements and related notes and that you have reviewed and 
approved the financial statements and related notes prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility for 
them. Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual, preferably from senior 
management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those services; 
and accept responsibility for them.  

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other  

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other confirmations we request 
and will locate any documents selected by us for testing.  

We will provide copies of our reports to the City; however, management is responsible for distribution of the reports 
and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing privileged and confidential 
information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection. 

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of MWH Group, P.C. and constitutes confidential 
information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and appropriate individuals 
will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to a cognizant agency or its designee, a federal agency 
providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review of 
the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. 
If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of MWH Group, P.C.’s 
personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the 
aforementioned parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information contained 
therein to others, including other governmental agencies.  

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report release 
date or for any additional period requested by the cognizant agencies. If we are aware that a federal awarding 
agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party(ies) contesting the audit finding for 
guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation. 

Valerie Halverson, CPA, is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing 
the reports or authorizing another individual to sign them.  

Our fee for these services will be at our standard hourly rates plus out-of-pocket costs (such as report reproduction, 
word processing, postage, travel, copies, telephone, etc.) except that we agree that our gross fee, including 
expenses, will not exceed $7,500 - $11,500. Our standard hourly rates vary according to the degree of responsibility 
involved and the experience level of the personnel assigned to your audit. Our invoices for these fees will be 
rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. In accordance with our firm policies, 



City of New Fairview, Texas 
January 11, 2023 
 
Page 5 
 
 

 

work may be suspended if your account becomes 30 days or more overdue and may not be resumed until your 
account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have 
been completed upon written notification of termination, even if we have not completed our report. You will be 
obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket costs through the date 
of termination.  The above fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and third-party consultant 
and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the audit.  If significant additional 
time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs. 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to City of New Fairview, Texas and believe this letter accurately 
summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you agree 
with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us.  

 

Very truly yours, 
 

 

MWH Group, P.C. 

 

RESPONSE: 

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of City of New Fairview, Texas:  

 
Signature:    
 
Title:    
 
Date:    

 

 



 

 
 

 
CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS 

RESOLUTION 202301-06-113 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS, APPROVING THE CITY 
ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 
MWH GROUP, PC, TO CONDUCT THE ANNUAL AUDIT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING 
ON SEPTEMBER 30, 2021; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Fairview is an incorporated city in the State of Texas and a General  
Law city as classified by the Texas Municipal Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 103.001 of the Local Government Code requires a municipality to have  
its records and accounts audited annually and prepare an annual financial statement based upon  
the audit; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 103.002 of the Local Government Code requires that a municipality shall  
employ at its own expense a certified public accountant who is licensed in this state or a public  
accountant who holds a permit to practice from the Texas State Board of Public Accountancy to  
conduct an annual audit and prepare the financial statement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of New Fairview desires to enter into an agreement with MWH Group  
for a not to exceed amount of $11,500.00, to audit the City’s financials and prepare  
an annual audit report.  

 
NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE  
CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS, THAT: 

 
SECTION 1. That engagement letter for audit services, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit 
“A” and made a part hereof for all purposes, is hereby authorized and approved. 
 
SECTION 2. That the City Administrator is hereby authorized to execute and the City Secretary to 
attest, as needed, an engagement letter for audit services for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021. 
 
SECTION 3: This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage, as provided by law. 
 
PRESENTED AND PASSED on this 16th day of January 2023, at a regular meeting of the New 
Fairview City Council. 
         
        ________________________________ 

JOHN TAYLOR, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 

      
BROOKE BOLLER, City Secretary  

 


	20230113_REGULAR SESSION
	Plan Review-Building Inspection Agenda Sheet (Jan. 16, 2023) (1)
	SAFEbuilt Agreement (May 4, 2020)
	BVNA Proposal (Jan. 16, 2023)
	Proposal for City of New Fairview (1)
	Animal Control Ord. Agenda Sheet (Jan. 16, 2023)
	Chpater 3 - Animal Control Ordinance
	chapter 3: Animal Control
	ARTICLE 3.01 GENERAL PROVISIONS
	§ 3.01.001 Definitions.
	§ 3.01.002 Penalty.
	§ 3.01.003 Enforcement.
	§ 3.01.004 Citations; authority of animal control officers.
	§ 3.01.005 Rabies control.
	§ 3.01.006 Animals at large; impoundment.
	§ 3.01.007 Nuisances.
	§ 3.01.008 Confinement of stray animal by individual.
	§ 3.01.009 Abandonment of animal.
	§ 3.01.010 Cruelty.
	§ 3.01.011 Livestock prohibited in certain places; riding horses on street.
	§ 3.01.012 Breeding livestock.
	§ 3.01.013 Herding animals in public place.
	§ 3.01.014 Keeping livestock.
	§ 3.01.015 Keeping fowl.
	§ 3.01.016 Keeping bees.
	§ 3.01.017 Killing or injuring birds.
	§ 3.01.018 Killing, injuring or capturing animals on public property.
	§ 3.01.019 Disposal of dead animals.

	ARTICLE 3.02 DANGEROUS DOGS
	§ 3.02.001 Definition.
	§ 3.02.002 Dangerous dogs.
	§ 3.02.003 Determination that dog is dangerous.
	§ 3.02.004 Requirements for owner.
	§ 3.02.005 Registration.
	§ 3.02.006 Attacks by dangerous dog.
	§ 3.02.007 Defenses.



	January-10-2022-Minutes-Signed-
	March-7-2022-Minutes-Signed
	Animal Control Ordinance Draft (Jan. 16, 2023)
	AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS, AMENDING THE CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 3, ANIMAL CONTROL, ARTICLE 3.01, GENERAL PROVISIONS, SECTIONS 3.01.000, 3.01.014 AND 3.01.016, BY PERMITTING CERTAIN BEEKEEPING ACTIVITIES WITHIN CITY LIMIT...
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS, THAT:
	§ 3.01.001 Definitions.
	Section 3.01.016  Keeping Bees

	Parks & Rec Board Agenda Sheet (Jan. 16, 2023)
	Parks  Rec Board Draft Ordinance (Jan. 16 2023)  v3rbc draft (1)
	AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS, AMENDING CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 10, STREETS, PARKS AND OTHER PUBLIC WAYS AND PLACES, ARTICLE 10.1, GENERAL PROVISIONS,TO ADD ARTICLE 10.3 AND SECTIONS 10.03.001-10.03.007, PARKS AND RECREATION...
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS, THAT:
	SECTION ONE. Findings Incorporated.
	The findings set forth above are incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if fully set forth herein.
	ARTICLE  10.03, PARKS
	Sec. 10.03.001 Creation and Purpose
	ARTICLE 10.4. CONDUCT IN PARKS


	January 3, 2023 Council Minutes
	November 2022 Finacial Report
	December 2022 Financial Report
	First Quarter 2022-2023 Investment Report
	Wise County Road Project Agreement Agenda Sheet (Jan. 16, 2023)
	Project Agreement #1015 (Jan. 16, 2023)
	Resolution - Wise County Project Agreement (Jan. 16, 2023)
	RESOLUTION
	202301-03-110
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS, THAT:
	SECTION 1. The City of New Fairview, Texas approves entering into this Project Agreement (#1015) with Wise County, Texas for the above-mentioned Public Improvement Project.
	SECTION 2. The City Administrator is hereby authorized to execute this Project Agreement and approve all material expenses associated with these public improvement projects.
	SECTION 3. This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon approval.

	County Road 4717 Agenda Sheet (Jan. 16, 2023)
	Resolution 202207-02-206 (July 18, 2022)
	Copy of Chip Seal Layer Estimate from Wise County (July 18, 2022)
	County Road 4717 Resolution (Jan. 16, 2023)
	RESOLUTION
	202301-04-111
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:

	Purcahsing Policy Agenda Sheet (Jan. 16, 2023)
	Copy of Ordinance 2020-13-208 (May 18, 2020)
	Repealing Ordinance Purchasing Policy (Jan. 16, 2023)
	AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NEW FIARVIEW, TEXAS, REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 2020-13-208; PROVIDING FOR REPEALING; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS ORDINANCE.
	NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS:

	Resolution - Purchasing Policy (Jan. 16, 2023)
	RESOLUTION
	202301-05-112
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS, THAT:
	SECTION 1. The Purchasing Policy of the City of New Fairview, attached hereto as “Exhibit A”, is hereby adopted to help maintain financial disciplines, consistency, and stability.
	SECTION 2. This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon passage and approval.

	Exhibit A - Purchasing Policy (Jan. 16, 2023)
	1. PURPOSE
	2. THE PURCHASING FUNCTION
	3. PURCHASING POLICY

	Auditor PSA Agenda Sheet (Jan. 16 2023) v2 rbc (1)
	Engagement Letter - City of New Fairview - revised 2021 (1)
	Resolution - MWH Group (Jan. 16, 2023)
	NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
	CITY OF NEW FAIRVIEW, TEXAS, THAT:
	ATTEST:


